
M:\City Council Meetings\2024 Council Staff Reports\9.16.2024 City Council Meetings\9.16.2024 Council Meeting.doc 

    Regular City Council Meeting 
    7:00 p.m., Monday, Sept. 16, 2024 
    City Council Chambers 
    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 
 

 
 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
4. APPROVAL OF ITEMS ON CONSENT AGENDA 
 A. City of Farmington Minutes 
 B. Farmington Public Safety Monthly Report  
 C. Farmington Monthly Payments Report 
 D. Farmington Quarterly Investment Report 
 E. Appointment of Kevin Russom to the Bicentennial Committee  

F. Resignation of Colleen Coogan from the Commission on Children Youth 
and Families 

 
5. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
      
6. PRESENTATION/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Public Safety Annual Report 
   
7. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Request to approve the purchase of license plate reader system - FLOCK  
B. Introduction of Proposed Amendment to the City of Farmington Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 34, “Water & Sewers”, Article III, “Sewage Disposal,” 
Section 34-117, Building Sewer and Connections, Construction, Usage 
and Maintenance,” To add subsection (C)(14), Regulating Building Sewer 
Lining. 

C. Emergency Sewer Repair Payment 
D. Grand River Sewer Lining 
E. Emergency Sanitary Sewer Lining  
F. Warner Home Exterior Repairs  
G. DPW Roof Seam Repairs 
H. Consideration of the Fourth Amended Resolution Designating The City of 

Farmington "Syndicate" Social District and Defining the Commons Area to 
include new eligible license holders. 

I. Consideration to Adopt Budget Amendment #4, amending Fiscal Year 
2024-25 Budget 

 



M:\City Council Meetings\2024 Council Staff Reports\9.16.2024 City Council Meetings\9.16.2024 Council Meeting.doc 

8.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
9. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City will follow its normal procedures for accommodation of persons with disabilities. Those individuals needing 
accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk (248) 474-5500, ext. 2218 at least 
two working days in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 



    City Council Meeting 
    6:00 p.m., Monday, August 19, 2024 
    Conference Room 
    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 
 
                                       

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
 
A special meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on August 19, 2024, at 23600 Liberty 
Street, Farmington, MI. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267-
1976.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:02 PM by Mayor LaRussa. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present  
Joe LaRussa Mayor  Present  
Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present  
Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present  
Maria Taylor Councilmember Present  

 
 
2. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Move to approve the agenda as presented.   

RESULT: APPROVED - UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem 
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 No members of the public spoke.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council August 19, 2024 

2 

4. MSHDA Master Plan Grant

In January of 2024, during a budget discussion, it was mentioned a grant might be
available for up to $50,000 to update the master plan and applied for. The grant is through
MSHDA (Michigan State Housing Development Authority) and focuses on
affordable/attainable housing and the missing middle. The city was awarded the grant and
offers up to $50,000 to put towards the master plan.

Move to authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement with MSHDA for the Housing 
Readiness Incentive Program Grant for the Master Plan. 

RESULT: APPROVED - UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Taylor, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Parkins, Councilmember 
AYES: Balk, LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor 

5. DISCUSSION REGARDING SEWER REPAIRS

DPW Superintendent Chuck Eudy lead the sewer repair discussion. He noted there have
been many sewer repairs within the last two years. The sewer system is nearing the end
of the useful life expectancy. The budget allows for some of the repairs, but not all. The
Superintendent spoke of current/completed repairs and upcoming repairs that include,
Thomas & School Streets, Farmington Glen Swim Club, Farmington Road H2S
Deterioration and Failure, Conroy Court, James Court and Freedom Road ROW, Grand
River and Pickett Street, and Gill Road. Not all the projects have funding allocated.
Discussion was had amongst Council. Superintendent Eudy proposed the steps it will take
to make the necessary repairs. It was noted that approximately $471,000 of emergency
funds would be needed to complete the proposed repairs. Councilmember Schneemann
suggested with the motion to approve the funding, it would be important to note, the
Assistant City Manager has suggested to utilize funding that was allocated for another
project, noting the funds are available, classified under a different project. Mayor LaRussa
suggested to address the areas that have the most point failures first, from the sewer
condition study. The Mayor suggested developing solutions for funding to get ahead of
the projects. More topics were discussed amongst the Council, OHM and Department
Heads. The emergency repairs will be presented to Council at the regular meeting for a
vote.

6. UPDATE ON SHIAWASSEE PARK PATHWAY – AUSTIN DOWNIE, OHM

Mr. Downie of OHM presented an overview of the project and the team working on the
project. He is hopeful the environmental review will be completed soon, and the design
process can begin. Currently the best proposed plan is to run a boardwalk on the top of
the hill and the eastern/central pedestrian bridge to be replaced and connect to the middle
of the park. More planning will take place after the final environmental review.



Minutes Farmington City Council August 19, 2024 

 

 
 3 

 
 
7. OTHER BUSINESS  
 

City Manager David Murphy asked for a joint meeting with the CIA – the meeting date 
will be decided later. He noted agenda item 7-C will need to be removed from the regular 
meeting until a future meeting. City Attorney Tom Schultz noted a mortarium on murals 
that will be brought to council.  

 
8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Councilmember Schneemann mentioned he has questions about the salt dome before 
he can vote on it.  

 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Move to adjourn the meeting. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem  
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember   

 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:58 p.m. 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Joe LaRussa, Mayor  
 
 
  
Meaghan K. Bachman, City Clerk   
 
 



    City Council Meeting 
    7:00 p.m., Monday, August 19, 2024 
    Conference Room 
    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 
                          

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 
A meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on August 19, 2024, at 23600 Liberty Street, 
Farmington, MI. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267-1976.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:07 PM by Mayor LaRussa.  
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present  
Joe LaRussa Mayor  Present  
Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present  
Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present  
Maria Taylor Councilmember Present  

City Administration Present 
City Manager David Murphy 
Assistant City Manager, Chris Weber 
City Clerk, Meaghan Bachman  
DPW Superintendent Chuck Eudy 
DDA Director, Kate Knight 
City Treasurer, Jaime Pohlman 
City Attorney, Tom Schultz   

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Resident Jeffrey Suhre of 33113 Orchard Street spoke of flooded parking lot due to the 
rain.   

 
4. APPROVAL OF ITEMS ON CONSENT AGENDA 

 A. City of Farmington Minutes 
B. Farmington Monthly Payments Report 
C. National Fit Challenge Grant Acceptance Resolution 
 

Move to approve the consent agenda as presented.   

RESULT: APPROVED UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem 
SECONDER: Parkins, Councilmember  

 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council August 19, 2024 

 

 
 2 

 
5. APPROVAL OF THE REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Move to approve the regular agenda with the removal of items 7-C Design concept of 
Thomas Street and 7-H Revised salt storage facility design. 
 

RESULT: APPROVED UNANIMOUS   
MOVER: Schneemann, Councilmember    
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember  

 
 
6. PRESENTATION/PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
6-A.  Presentation - Special Event Application – Holly Days 
 

The Compo and Medema Group has decided to organize Holly Days which has been an 
annual event usually hosted by the Greater Farmington Area Chamber of Commerce. 
The Chamber decided not to do the event this year and Annette Compo did not want to 
see the event end. The event will follow the same foot print as last year, however, Riley 
Park will likely be unavailable for the event because the City plans to start putting up the 
ice rink. Holly Days is slated for Dec. 7. and includes the Gift, Greens and Giving Holiday 
Market in Riley Park and a lighted parade down Grand River. 
 

Move to approve the special event application for the 2024 Holly Days and Light Up the 
Grand Parade on December 7, 2024 
 

RESULT: APPROVED UNANIMOUS   
MOVER: Taylor, Councilmember    
SECONDER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem   

 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS 7A – 7F 
 
 
7-A Consideration to Adopt Resolution Recommending Approval of Redevelopment 

Liquor License for Good Food Farmington, LLC 
 

Move to approve resolution authorizing a new Class C and SDM Redevelopment 
Liquor License with SundaySales Permit and Outdoor Service Permit, and Social 
District Permit for Good Food Farmington, LLC, 33043 Grand River Ave. 
2) Approve resolution authorizing submittal of documentation for a Redevelopment 
Liquor License for Good Food Farmington, LLC for Spruce and Ash, 33043 Grand 
River Ave. 
3) Move to approve Resolution of Local Approval for issuance of new Class C and 
SDM Redevelopment Liquor License with Sunday Sales Permit and Outdoor Service 
Permit, and Social District Permit for Good Food Farmington, LLC, 33043 Grand 



Minutes Farmington City Council August 19, 2024 

 

 
 3 

River Ave subject to final review and approval of background checks by Public 
Safety and to final inspections of the premises by the City’s Building Official. 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem 
SECONDER: Parkins, Councilmember 
AYES:  Balk, LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor  

 
 
7-B Warner Home Appropriation Budget, Concept and Ad Hoc Committee 
 

Presented by City Manager David Murphy. In January of 2024, the City of Farmington was 
granted a $1,000,000 appropriation to be used on the Warner Home and grounds. City 
Manager Murphy met with DPW Superintendent, Chuck Eudy, to prepare a budget to 
utilize the funds as part of the grant award. Mr. Eudy and the City Manager met with 
Council Member Schneemann to revise the budget and take into consideration the 
concept that Mr. Schneemann proposed. It was suggested that an ad hoc committee 
consisting of the City Manager, Superintendent of Public Works and two City Council 
members should be assembled to oversee the repairs and coordinate the next phases of 
the event center. 
 

Move to approve the proposed concept for the future of the Warner Home and grounds 
as an event space, and the proposed budget to utilize the $1,000,000 appropriation for 
the Warner Home and grounds as presented, and an ad hoc committee consisting of the 
City Manager, Superintendent of Public Works, Councilmember Taylor, and 
Councilmember Schneemann.  

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Taylor, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Parkins, Councilmember  

 
 
7-C Construction Estimate No. 8 for the 2022 Road Rehabilitation Project 
 
Move to approve payment to Best Asphalt Incorporated for payment application No. 8 in 
the amount of $18,186.67 for the 2022 Road Rehabilitation Project. 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem   
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember 
AYES:  LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor, Balk 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council August 19, 2024 

 

 
 4 

7-D Emergency Sewer Repair Payment 
 
Move to Approve payment to D’Angelo Brothers Incorporated located in Farmington Hills 
MI in the amount of $45,855.58 for the emergency sanitary sewer repair at 34225 Conroy 
Court. 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Taylor, Councilmember   
SECONDER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem   
AYES:  Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor, Balk, LaRussa 

 
 
7-E Emergency Sanitary Sewer Lining 
 
Presented by DPW Superintendent Eudy. A sinkhole formed in the Farmington Road right-of-way 
near 21790 Farmington Road.  Crews cleaned and CCTV the sanitary sewer from Farmington 
Road towards 21790 Farmington Road.  Crews located a failed sanitary sewer due to H2S 
(Hydrogen Sulfide Gas).  H2S will cause deterioration of concrete sewer pipe.  Upon further 
investigation, crews identified several sanitary sewer structures with H2S deterioration, and 
approximately of 2,260 lineal feet of 12-inch diameter concrete sanitary sewer with mild to severe 
H2S deterioration.  Crews temporarily repaired the failed sanitary sewer until replacement or CIPP 
lining could be conducted.   
 
Two sewer lining projects are included in the 24/25 FY budget.  The two locations are Thomas & 
School Street, and 33700 Freedom Road.  Budget allocations for the two locations were based 
upon quotes from Pipeline Management.  Pipeline Management historically has been low bidder 
on several sewer lining projects for the City of Farmington and has preapproved unit pricing for 
Oakland County Water Resource Commission (OCWRC).  If all three projects were combined 
(Thomas & School Street, 33700 Freedom Road, Farmington Road H2S) a cost savings of 
mobilization expenses would be possible. 
 
OHM has reviewed the proposals from Pipeline Management and due to the condition of the 
sanitary sewer, and the potential of sanitary sewer main failures which would affect 500 homes, 
recommends including the two budgeted projects with the emergency sanitary sewer lining.      
 
Stand Alone Project CIPP Lining               
Farmington Glen                   $34,450  
Thomas & School Street       $97,490 
Farmington Road                 $271,180 
                                             $403,120 
5% Contingency                     $20,156 
                                             $423,275 
 
 
Combined Projects CIPP Lining    $403,120, savings of $20,155 or 4.8%. 
 

 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council August 19, 2024 

 

 
 5 

Move to approve Emergency Sanitary Sewer Lining to Pipeline Management in the amount 
of $423,276. The funding will come from the reallocation of funds from a project previously 
budgeted.  

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Parkins, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember  
AYES:  Schneemann, Taylor, Balk, LaRussa, Parkins 

 
 
 
7-F Emergency Sewer Repair 
 
Early July 2024 the Public Works office was notified of a sinkhole near 21790 Farmington 
Road. Crews investigated and conducted a temporary repair of the concrete sanitary 
sewer pipe. During the investigation and temporary repair crews identified the sewer 
failure was caused by Hydrogen Sulfide gas (H2S). H2S gas is present in sanitary sewers 
and causes deterioration of concretes sanitary sewer pipes. The Chesley Lift Staton force 
main discharges to a sanitary sewer structure near 21790 Farmington Road increasing 
the H2S gases. Crews continued investigating the sanitary sewer system downstream 
from that address to determine the extent of deterioration caused by the H2S gas. Crews 
identified an additional 60-foot-long segment of concrete sanitary sewer deteriorated 
beyond repair of CIPP lining, which will require open cut excavation for the sanitary sewer 
replacement. D’Angelo Brother’s Inc located at 30836 W. 8 Mile Road, Farmington Hills 
48336 quote in the amount of $67,526.32 includes concrete removal, +/- 60 lineal feet of 
sanitary sewer replacement, backfill & compaction, 21AA Crushed Concrete driving 
surface. Concrete replacement is not included in the D’Angelo quote as the amount of 
concrete replacement will be unknown until the sanitary sewer is replaced. Concrete 
replacement will be completed by one of our concrete contractors as soon as possible. 
OHM has been informed of the H2S deterioration of the concrete sanitary sewers and is 
investigating what measures could be implemented to reduce the H2S gases. D’Angelo 
Brothers Incorporated is a pre-approved Oakland County Water Resources Commission 
sanitary sewer repair contractor. 
 
Move to Approve D’Angelo Brothers Incorporated located in Farmington Hills MI to 
conduct emergency sanitary sewer repair near 21790 Farmington Road due to H2S 
deterioration. 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem    
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember  
AYES:  Taylor, Balk, LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann 

 
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council August 19, 2024 

 

 
 6 

 
 
7-G Spray Patch Road Repair on Tree Hill Blvd 
 
Move to approve Spray-Patch Road Repair Inc to conduct the spray-patch 
road repair on Tree Hill Blvd. not to exceed $15,000. 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem    
SECONDER: Parkins, Councilmember  
AYES:  Balk, LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor 

 
 
7-H Consideration to Amend Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget 
 
Move to adopt Budget Amendment Resolution #2, amending Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget. 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem    
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember  
AYES:  LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor, Balk 

 
 
7-I Amend Social District hours for Football Tailgate Event 
 
Move to approve a resolution amending the social district common area management and 
maintenance plan for a temporary change in the hours of operation for September 8, 2024, 
to allow the Commons Area to be open until 11:59 PM on that single date and approve the 
football Tailgate event that is proposed to take place in the Syndicate area outside adjacent 
to the west parking lot. 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Taylor, Councilmember    
SECONDER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem   
AYES:  Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor, Balk, LaRussa 

 
 
8.  PUBLIC COMMENT  
  

Brian from Heights Brewing spoke of the Founders Festival and concerns about 
communication with the organizer. 
 
Della James of 33250 Freedom, spoke of the Founders Festival and the information 
booth.  
 
 
  



Minutes Farmington City Council August 19, 2024 

 

 
 7 

 
9. CITY COUNCIL COMMENT  
 
 Councilmember Taylor invited all to attend the Bicentennial Timeline Mural Ribbon Cutting 
on September 25, 2024, from 5:30-6:00 PM.   
 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Balk reminded everyone of the upcoming rummage sale at the Mansion.  
 
 Mayor LaRussa spoke of the SOCMA monthly dinner that will be hosted in Farmington. 
The Mayor noted the Maxfield demo project was a work in progress for years and he is proud of 
all the work that went into it and thanked all who participated. Mayor LaRussa inquired about a 
collection policy for the Mansion.  

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Move to adjourn the meeting. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem  
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember   

 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:04 p.m. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe LaRussa, Mayor  
 
 
 ___ 
Meaghan Bachman, City Clerk  
   
 
 
Approval Date:  



    City Council Meeting 
    6:00 p.m., Tuesday, September 3, 2024 
    Conference Room 
    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 
 
                                       

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
 
A special meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on September 3, 2024, at 23600 
Liberty Street, Farmington, MI. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 
267-1976.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:05 PM by Mayor LaRussa. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present  
Joe LaRussa Mayor  Present  
Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present  
Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present  
Maria Taylor Councilmember Present  

 
City Administration Present:  
City Manager, David Murphy 
City Clerk, Meaghan Bachman  
 
 
2. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Move to approve the agenda as presented.   

RESULT: APPROVED - UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem 
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 No members of the public spoke.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council September 3, 2024 

 

 
 2 

 
4. Board and Commission Interviews 
 
  City Council interviewed three candidates for the Parking Advisory Committee: 

• Kevin Russom 
• Jacob Kahn 
• Keith Michaluk 

 
Move to appoint Keith Michaluk to the Parking Advisory Committee for a three-year term 
ending June 30, 2027. 
 

RESULT: APPROVED - UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Parkins, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Schneemann, Councilmember 
AYES: Balk, LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor 

 
 
5. OTHER BUSINESS  
 

None  
 
6. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Councilmember Taylor noted this was the strongest slate of candidates for the Parking 
Committee opening.  

 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Move to adjourn the meeting. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem  
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember   

 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Joe LaRussa, Mayor  
 
 
  
Meaghan K. Bachman, City Clerk   
 
 



    City Council Meeting 
    7:00 p.m., Tuesday, September 3, 2024 
    Conference Room 
    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 
                          

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 
A meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on September 3, 2024, at 23600 Liberty 
Street, Farmington, MI. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267-
1976.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:07 PM by Mayor LaRussa. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present  
Joe LaRussa Mayor  Present  
Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present  
Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present  
Maria Taylor Councilmember Present  

City Administration Present 
City Manager David Murphy 
City Clerk, Meaghan Bachman  
DPW Superintendent Chuck Eudy 
Assistant City Manager, Chris Weber 
Public Safety Director, Bob Houhanisin 
City Treasurer, Jaime Pohlman 
City Attorney, Tom Schultz   

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
No public comment was heard.  

 
3. APPROVAL OF ITEMS ON CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Move to approve the consent agenda with the addition of item #5, consideration 
to amend the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget.   

RESULT: APPROVED UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Taylor, Councilmember  
SECONDER: Balk, Councilmember  

 
 
 
 
 
 
4.  Bicentennial Special Event Applications 



Minutes Farmington City Council September 3, 2024 

 

 
 2 

• Farmington Timeline Mural Unveiling 
• Bicentennial Light Show 

 
Move to approve the following special event applications: 1. Farmington Timeline 
Mural Unveiling to be held in the alley between Fresh Thyme and Salon Suites on 
Sept. 25 at 5:30 p.m. and 2. Farmington Bicentennial Light Show to be held in the 
Farmington Road vicinity between Grand River Avenue and State Street on Sept. 
27 at 8 p.m. 
 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Taylor, Councilmember  
SECONDER: Parkins, Councilmember 

 
 
5. Consideration to Amend Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget 
 
 

The Bicentennial Committee has been successful in securing grants, sponsorships, and 
merchandise revenue to supplement and expand their programming for the Bicentennial. 
Additional programming includes a mural in the Fresh Thyme Alley and a light show on 
Farmington Road. The added budgeted expenditures are entirely offset by increases to 
budgeted revenue.  

 
Move to adopt Budget Amendment Resolution #3, amending Fiscal Year 2024-25 
Budget.  

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Parkins, Councilmember  
SECONDER: Maria, Councilmember 
AYES:  Balk, LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor  

 
 
6. Thomas Street Concept Plan 
 

Thomas Street will be rebuilt with the construction of the Hillside Towne Homes project. 
This gives the city the opportunity to redesign Thomas Street between Warner and 
Farmington. OHM Advisors presented a concept plan to begin the planning. 
Councilmember Schneemann noted safety concerns due to broken concrete in the area 
that has heavy traffic. He suggested a phased approach to fix the areas that are in need. 
Councilmember Taylor agreed with the phased approach. Mayor LaRussa asked if this 
project is part of the DDA Design Committee and noted that the DDA should be involved 
in discussion and to assist with the financing of the project because it is in their district. 
Further discussion was had regarding the project design ideas and timelines. The 
following amended motion was made: 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council September 3, 2024 

 

 
 3 

Move to approve the proposed concept design and preliminary opinion of cost for the 
Thomas Street Alley from OHM in an amount not to exceed $52,000, with the caveat that 
there will be a phase approach that addresses some of the immediate safety concerns in 
the area. 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Schneemann, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember  
AYES:  LaRussa, Parkins, Taylor, Schneemann, Balk 

 
 
7. Parking lot repairs following Emergency Water Main Repairs 
 
Last winter Public Works conducted emergency water main repairs at LOC Federal Credit Union 
located at 22891 Farmington Road in the parking lot. Due to the extent of damage, the amount 
of asphalt replacement exceeds Public Works capabilities. City Administration has requested 
quotes from the asphalt contractor we have open contracts with and two local asphalt 
contractors. 
 
Quotes: 

• Best Asphalt $32,915 
• Hutch Paving $19,910 
• Bush Brothers Asphalt Paving Incorporated Option #1 $12,600 Option #2 $15,400 
•  

City Administration recommends awarding the 22891 Farmington Road Parking Lot Surface 
Repairs to Bush Brothers Asphalt Paving located at 20788 Osmus, Farmington Hills MI 48336 in 
the amount of $15,400 for the option 2 repair which includes concrete curb replacement with 
approximately 15% contingency totaling $17,710. 
 
Move to award LOC Federal Credit Union parking lot surface repairs to Bush Brothers 
Incorporated in the amount of $17,710 and allow City Administrators to execute contract 
documents. 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Taylor, Councilmember   
SECONDER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem 
AYES:  Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor, Balk, LaRussa 

 
 
8. Reappointments to the Farmington Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
Move to reappoint Paul Bertin, Matt Schiffman, and Eric Gensheimer to the Farmington 
Zoning Board of Appeals for 3-year terms ending June 30, 2027. 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council September 3, 2024 

 

 
 4 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Schneemann, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember  

 
 
9. Consideration of Resolution Establishing a Moratorium on the Creation of Private 

Murals on the Exterior of Buildings Within the Downtown District in the City 
 

The City has worked with the DDA to implement several public art installations in the 
Downtown District over the past several years. The public art has been installed by the 
City. The City has received recent requests to consider the installation of private murals 
on buildings within the Downtown District. However, because the City does not have an 
ordinance or policy in place regarding the process for review and implementation of 
standards for the display of private murals in the Downtown District, City Staff and 
consultants have started reviewing the public art policies and ordinances of other Michigan 
communities. While publicly displayed art is desirable and the City seeks to consider 
implementation on a larger scale in the Downtown District, the creation of private murals 
or other artistic displays on panels on the exterior walls of buildings without established 
standards and a designated public body for review of each proposal may result in a the 
proliferation of blight and unregulated graffiti within the Downtown District. City Staff and 
consultants will consider and study possible regulations and legislation to address issues 
related to the display of private murals on exterior private building walls over the 120-day 
moratorium period in order to get standards and a review procedure in place. *Note: it was 
originally proposed as a 90-day period and changed to 120-day day period.  

 
Move to Resolution Establishing a Moratorium on the creation of Private Murals on the 
Exterior of Buildings Within the Downtown District in the City  

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Taylor, Councilmember   
SECONDER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem  

 
 
 10. Closed Session – To discuss confidential written communication from legal counsel 
 
Move to convene into closed session to discuss confidential written communication from 
legal counsel at 8:25 PM.  

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Taylor, Councilmember   
SECONDER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem  

 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council September 3, 2024 

 

 
 5 

Move to re-convene into open session at 9:45 PM 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Schneemann, Councilmember   
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember   

 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Move to adjourn the meeting. 

RESULT: APPROVED - UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem   
SECONDER: Schneemann, Councilmember   

 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe LaRussa, Mayor  
 
 
 ___ 
Meaghan Bachman, City Clerk  
   
 
 
Approval Date:  



Farmington Public Safety Department 

Public Safety Director Bob Houhanisin 

 
 
 
 

 23600 LIBERTY STREET, FARMINGTON MICHIGAN 48335 | PHONE: (248) 474-4700 | FAX: (248) 442-9815  

 

 

August 2024 Public Safety Incidents 
 
Flee and Elude: 
On 08/02/2024 at approximately 12:25 AM an officer observed a motorcycle N/B Orchard Lake from 
Grand River with no plate. The officer attempted to conduct a traffic stop with the motorcycle. The 
motorcycle fled from the officer E/B on Grand River from Orchard Lake. The officer terminated the 
pursuit. The case was forwarded to the Detective Bureau for further investigation.  
 
ASSAULT AND BATTERY 
On 08/08/2024 at approximately 8:15 PM officers were dispatched to the 32000 block of Grand River for 
a report of an assault and battery. When officers arrived the suspect, a 56-year-old male had fled the 
scene. Witnesses were able to copy down the license plate of the suspect vehicle. The Victim, a 27-year-
old male reported that the two had a disagreement about a parking spot. The suspect then assaulted 
him and fled. Officers were able to locate the suspect from the license plate and he was subsequently 
arrested and cited for Assault and Battery.   
 
Fraud 
On 08/12/2024 at approximately 6:30 PM officers took a front desk report for a report of credit card 
fraud. The victim, a 42-year-old woman stated that her ex-boyfriend a 45-year-old male had opened 
several credit cards in her name and had made numerous purchases with them. The case has been 
forwarded to the detective bureau for investigation and follow up.  
 
B&E 
On 08/13/2024 at approximately 01:30 AM officers were dispatched to the 33000 block of N. Manor Dr. 
for a reported B&E. Officers were met by the victim, a 24-year-old female who reported that she had 
returned home to her apartment after being gone for two day and found her entry door cracked open. 
She states that nothing was missing, but that several items were broken and out of place. There were no 
signs of forced entry noted. There were no cameras in the area and a canvas of neighbors reported 
nothing unusual. Currently there is no suspects. The case has been forwarded to the detective bureau 
for investigation.  
 
Fraud 
On 08/16/2024 at approximately 07:30 AM officers took a front desk report from the victim of 
fraudulently charged credit cards. The victim, a 65-year-old male reports that on 08/16 he noticed three 
fraudulent purchases on his bank account. The victim filed a dispute with his bank and requested a 
police report be made. There is not currently a known suspect, and the case has been forwarded to the 
detective bureau for investigation.    

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 23600 LIBERTY STREET, FARMINGTON MICHIGAN 48335 | PHONE: (248) 474-4700 | FAX: (248) 442-9815  

Fraud 
On 08/20/2024 officers were dispatched to the 23000 block of Farmington Rd for a reported fraud – 
illegal use of credit cards. Officers met with the victim, as 30-year-old male who reported that he 
received an alert on his phone about his credit card being used at a local store. Officers were able to 
obtain video of the transaction and discovered that two suspects, one male and one female 
approximately 30 years old were seen swiping multiple credit cards to pay for their groceries. Officers 
were also able to identify the suspect vehicle. The case has been forwarded to the detective bureau for 
investigation.   
 
Fraud 
On 08/22/2024 officers were dispatched to the 23000 block of Farmington Rd. for a reported fraud. 
Officers met with the victim, a 71-year-old female who reported that she received information from her 
bank about an unapproved withdraw from one of her bank accounts. The suspect used a passport with 
the victim’s identification to withdraw the funds. The bank conducted an internal investigation, and the 
victim was refunded her money.     

 
Structure Fire 
On 08/26/2024 at approximately 8:35 PM, officers responded to Chatham Hills Apartments on a smoke 
investigation. Upon arrival, officers detected smoke coming from underneath the door to a second story 
unit. The unit was unattended and locked. The officers forced entry and observed an active fire within 
the unit. The fire was extinguished by officers. The origin of the fire was determined to be unattended 
incense placed near an apartment wall.  
 
Storm Damage 
On 08/27/2024 heavy thunderstorms rolled through the city at 1800 hours. Officers responded to 22 
storm related calls for service. The calls for service included wires down, emergency medicals and road 
hazards.  
 
Fail to Stop for PO 
On 08/29/2024 an officer attempted to stop a vehicle for speeding at Grand River and Power. The 
officer activated his patrol lights and siren. The vehicle continued W/B on Grand River to Shiawassee 
where it stopped for a red signal.  The officer attempted to get the drivers attention with negative 
results. The vehicle was eventually boxed in at Grand River and Drake. The 49-year-old driver was 
arrested and cited for Failing to stop for a Police Officers signal.  
 

CALL TYPE & QUANTITY 

TOTAL CALLS TRAFFIC STOPS MEDICALS FIRE CALLS CRASHES 

645 266 37 25 19 
 

OWI OUID DWLS WARRANT FELONY 

2 0 7 13 0 

 







INVESTMENT REPORT

CITY OF FARMINGTON

QUARTER ENDED JUNE, 2024

Submitted by:

Jaime Pohlman, Director of Finance and Administration



CITY OF FARMINGTON
QUARTER ENDING 

JUNE 2024

  
BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE RATING 

4/30/24 5/31/24 6/30/24 4/30/24 5/31/24 6/30/24 MATURITY RATING AGENCY
Pooled Mutual Funds:
Comerica 4,826,462$    4,847,475$        4,867,896$      5.13% 5.13% 5.13% Daily Not rated N/A
Oakland County Investment Pool 975,894          978,020             980,147           2.17% 2.57% 2.65% Daily Not rated N/A
Michigan Class 7,089,139       7,121,559          6,402,639        5.38% 5.39% 5.42% Daily AAAm S&P
Total Pooled Funds: 12,891,495    12,947,053        12,250,683      

Certificates of Deposit: -                      -                         -                       
Total Certificates of Deposit: -                      -                         -                       

JPMorgan Chase  
100% US Treasury Funds 1,808,877$    1,113,043$        1,365,128$      4.78% 4.78% 4.78%
Uninvested 584,052$        439,866$           524,832$         2.15% 2.15% 2.15%

2,392,929$    1,552,909$        1,889,960$      

Less: Authorities/Entities** (1,876,904)     (1,678,007)         (1,788,450)       

 TOTAL: 13,407,520$  12,821,956$      12,352,193$    

RATE OF RETURN

** Investment Balances do not include the investments of the 47th District Court,  the Farmington Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, the 
Corridor Improvement Authority, the Farmington Downtown Development Authority, the Friends of the Governor Warner Mansion, the Self 
Insurance Funds on deposit with MMRMA, or the Public Employee Health Care Funds invested with Morgan Stanley Smith Barney.

Page 1



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: Sept. 16, 2024 

Item 
Number 

4E 

Submitted by: Melissa Andrade 
Agenda Topic: Appointment to Bicentennial Committee 
Proposed Motion:   Appoint Kevin Russom to the Farmington Bicentennial Committee. 

Background:  In June, 2023, Farmington City Council established a Bicentennial Committee to 
organize the celebration of the City’s 200th birthday.  

At the Sept. 3, 2024 Council Meeting, City Council interviewed candidates for the Downtown 
Parking Advisory Committee. Council agreed that candidate Kevin Russom would be a good fit 
for the Bicentennial Committee. 

Materials: none 



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: September 16, 2024 

Item 
Number 

4F 

Submitted by: Melissa Andrade 
Agenda Topic: Board and Commission Resignation 
Proposed Motion:  Accept the resignation of Colleen Coogan from the Commission on Children 
Youth and Families where she serves as an alternate. 

Background: 

On Sept. 9, 2024 Colleen sent an email to Melissa Andrade, Assistant to the City Manager, 
stating, “I would love to continue serving but I am out of town on Thursdays at a clients and 
cannot make these times.  Please remove me from the board and I will reapply when my 
schedule permits.” 

Materials: 



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: September 16, 2024 

Item 
Number 

Submitted by: Bob Houhanisin, Public Safety Director 

Agenda Topic:  
Request to Approve the Purchase of License Plate Reader System known as FLOCK 

Proposed Motion:  Approve FY 2024/25 budget request to purchase the FLOCK License plate 
Reader System in the amount of $19,900.00 and install 4 license plate reader cameras within 
the City of Farmington.   

The public safety department requests the purchase of the FLOCK License Plate Reader 
system.  The Flock system is a network of license plate reading cameras which are positioned 
throughout southeast Michigan and the United States.  The cameras all work in conjunction with 
each other, so the addition of 4 cameras within the City of Farmington would be a force 
multiplier to the overall system.  By adding these cameras, FDPS will have access to hundreds 
of cameras and the system database.  The camera system is not designed to be used to track 
any individuals specifically and only recognizes vehicles and license plates, which are open to 
public view and not constitutionally protected.  The system is designed to investigate crimes 
such as robbery, homicide, kidnapping, theft, human trafficking, stolen vehicles, and other major 
criminal offenses.  FLOCK has been credited with solving multiple major incidents in Metro 
Detroit and it has been an instrumental investigative resource for departments like Farmington 
Hills and Southfield Police Departments.  The initial cost of $19,900.00 covers the installation of 
the cameras and there is an annual reoccurring cost of $15,500.  The F/Y 24/25 budget contains 
a line item for $19,300, however the difference between the budgeted amount and final FLOCK 
quote of $19,900 ($600) can be absorbed in the budget.     

Materials Attached: 
None 

7A



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: September 16, 2024 

Item 
Number 

7B  

Submitted by: Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic: Introduction of Proposed Amendment to the City of Farmington Code of 
Ordinances, Chapter 34, “Water & Sewers”, Article III, “Sewage Disposal,” Section 34-117, 
Building Sewer and Connections, Construction, Usage and Maintenance,” to add subsection 
(C)(14), Regulating Building Sewer Lining.  
Proposed Motion:  To approve introduction of Ordinance No. C-_____-2024, amending the 
City of Farmington Code of Ordinances, Chapter 34, Water & Sewers, to add new sub-section, 
Regulating Building Sewer Lining - FIRST READING 
 

Background:  The Public Works, and Planning and Building Departments are recommending 
an amendment to the existing City of Farmington Code of Ordinances, Chapter 34 Water & 
Sewers, adding a subsection providing standards/regulations permitting building owners an 
economical and reliable method to maintain and preserve their building sewer on private 
property and within the ROW or utility easement.   
 
The attached proposed amendment has been prepared by the City Attorney after discussion 
and review with the Departments.  The City does not currently have an Ordinance permitting the 
CIPP (cured-in-place pipe) lining of building sewers.  The requested action is review of the 
proposed amendment and approval of the First Reading. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials:  
City of Farmington Code of Ordinances, Chapter 34 Water & Sewers Regulating Proposed City 
of Farmington Code of Ordinances Amendment, Building Sewer Lining  



1 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
 

CITY OF FARMINGTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. C-____-2024 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF FARMINGTON 
CHAPTER 34, “WATER AND SEWERS,” ARTICLE III, “SEWAGE 
DISPOSAL,” SECTION 34-117,  “BUILDING SEWER AND 
CONNECTIONS, CONSTRUCTION, USE AND MAINTENANCE,” TO 
ADD SUBSECTION (C)(14), REGULATING BUILDING SEWER 
LINING.  

 
THE CITY OF FARMINGTON ORDAINS: 
 

Section 1 of Ordinance.  Ordinance Amendment. 
 

The Farmington City Code, Chapter 34, “Water and Sewers”, Article III, “Sewage 
Disposal,” Section 34-117, “Building Sewer and Connections, Construction, Use and 
Maintenance,” is hereby amended to add Subsection (c)(14) regulating building sewer 
lining,” to read as follows: 

 
(14)  For issuance of a permit for full wrap lining of a building sewer at the main, the 
applicant shall be required to meet the following requirements: 
 

i. Post a $10,000 cash bond and $15,000 surety bond to ensure against improper or 
defective materials, equipment, labor, workmanship, or otherwise.  The bonds will 
be held until the installation is inspected and approved by the City. In the event of 
a defect and if the repairs directed by the City are not completed within the time 
specified by the City, the City shall have the right to perform or secure the 
performance of the repairs, with all costs and expenses in doing so, including an 
administrative fee equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of the repair costs, charged 
to and to be received from the applicant and/or the surety from the funds posted. 
Once the City inspects and approves the installation, or any corrective action, the 
remaining bond will be returned to the applicant.  

ii. At least one installer shall provide proof that he or she  possess PACP (Pipeline 
Assessment Certification Program) and/or LACP (Lateral Assessment Certification 
Program) certification. The certified installer shall be on the job supervising the 
installation.  

iii. Except in an emergency, at least five (5) days prior to the start of work on any lining 
project, the applicant shall submit engineering plans and specifications for the 
project for approval by the City’s Superintendent of Public Works or Building 
Official. Plans for sewer lining for a commercial building sewer must be prepared 
by a professional engineer.   



2 
 

iv. Upon completion of the lining, the applicant shall provide a copy of the pre and 
post lining video to the city no later than 6 hours after lining completion.  

v. The Department of Public Works shall be notified 24 hours prior to installation and 
reserves the right to have the installation postponed based upon weather 
conditions or lack of available staffing to complete inspections on that date and 
time. No lining will be permitted prior to or on any government holiday. 

 
 

Section 2 of Ordinance.  Severability. 
 
 If any section, clause or provision of this ordinance shall be declared by the courts to be 
invalid, the validity of the ordinance as a whole, or in part, shall not be affected other than the part 
invalidated. 
 

Section 3 of Ordinance.  Repealer 
 
 All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect.  
 
 

Section 4 of Ordinance.  Effective Date. 
 

This amendatory ordinance shall be effective 10 days after adoption by the City Council 
and after publication as provided by the Charter of the City of Farmington. 
 
Ayes: 
Nays: 
Abstentions: 
Absent: 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN  ) 
  )ss. 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Farmington, Oakland 
County, Michigan, do certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the ordinance 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Farmington at a meeting held of the ____ day of 
______________, 2024, the original of which is on file in my office. 
        

_______________________________ 
       Meaghan Bachman, City Clerk 
       City of Farmington 
 

 



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: September 16, 2024 

Item 
Number 

7C 

Submitted by: Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic:  
Emergency Sewer Repair Payment 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to Approve payment to D’Angelo Brothers Incorporated in the amount of $48,207.07 for 
the emergency sanitary sewer repair at 33825 James Court. 
Background: 
Earlier this year, while conducting routine sanitary sewer cleaning Public Works crews 
encountered a significant amount of sand in the sanitary sewer located behind 33825 James 
Court.  Crews removed an unusual amount of sand and broken pipe from the 28-foot-deep 
sanitary manhole.  Crews CCTV the sanitary sewer and located a failed outside drop. 

Due to wet soil conditions and the location in the rear yard, the Public Works Department 
Informed City Manager of the situation and the decision was made to contact D’Angelo Brothers 
Incorporated (D’BI) of Farmington Hills, Mich. to repair the sanitary sewer main.  D’BI is the pre-
approved by the Oakland County Water Resource Commissioners office to conduct emergency 
and routine water main and sanitary sewer repairs.   

Public Works secured Temporary Construction Easements from the property owners located at 
3825 James Court.   

D’Angelo Brothers began excavation on August 19th and completed the repair on August 20st.  
Demobilization and clean-up extended into August 21stth.  D’BI located the failed sanitary sewer 
main and repaired the main, abandoning the outside drop and establishing a new inside drop.  
D’BI crews had to remove a 6-foot-tall privacy fence to facilitate the sewer repair.  The fence 
contractor, who originally installed the privacy fence, was impressed with the care taken by D’BI 
removing the fence and has provided a quote to reinstall the fence after the sidewalk is placed. 
Limited rear yard landscaping needed to be removed for the sewer repair.  Farmington’s 
Landscape Contractor was contacted to review the site while the repair was being conducted 
and to prepare a quote for the restoration.     

This is the third emergency repair on this branch of the system totaling over $260,000 to repair 
less than 70 lineal feet of pipe.  This branch of the system is mostly rear yards and sewers as 
deep as 28 feet.  Consideration of urgent CIPP lining of this branch of the system should be 
determined by City Council.  Using recent unit pricing, lining of this branch could be completed 
for $1,000,000 if no other open cut repairs are needed.      

Materials: 
Invoice # 102724-08 

































Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: September 16, 2024 

Item 
Number 

7D 

Submitted by: Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic: Grand River/Pickett Emergency Sanitary Sewer Lining 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to approve the award of the Grand River/Pickett Emergency Sanitary Sewer Lining to 
Pipeline Management in the amount of $31,790.00 
Background: 
Recently, a sinkhole formed in the Grand River Right-of-Way, east of 34225 Grand River.  
Crews cleaned and CCTV the sanitary sewer from Pickett Ave towards 34225 Grand River.  
Crews located two segments of failed sanitary sewer.  This segment of sanitary sewer is within 
the MDOT Right-of-Way, with a varying depth of 6-14 feet deep.  Public Works considered only 
to have the two failed segments “Stint lined”, but after consulting Pipeline Management, OHM,  
and the Assistant City Manager, we reconsidered to CIPP Line the entire segment. 

The Freedom Road/Flemming open cut sewer repair was completed last month for 
approximately $31,800 below allocated funding. Restoration, fence installation and sidewalk 
replacement should be completed at a cost of approximately $10,000.      

OHM has reviewed the proposals from Pipeline Management and due to the condition of the 
sanitary sewer, and the potential of sanitary sewer main failures - which would affect the 
operation of Medilodge of Farmington and ten homes - recommends including the CIPP sewer 
lining with the emergency sanitary sewer lining.      

Materials: 
Pipeline Management Stint Lining 
Pipeline Management Full CIPP Lining 
OHM Letter of Recommendation 



 
 

QUOTATION 
 
To: City of Farmington   Date: 8/22/2024 
 Attn: Mr. Chuck Eudy   Expiration Date:  30 Days From Submittal Date 
 33720 W. 9 Mile Road                         Project Name: Grand River & Pickett Spot Lining 

Farmington, MI 48335                          Payment Terms: Net 30–1.5% Int. Per Month Thereafter 
       

PIPELINE MANAGEMENT COMPANY, INC. (hereinafter Contractor or Pipeline) proposes to 
perform the work identified in Section 1 in accordance with the Project’s Contract Documents or 
Owner’s reasonable written direction when no plans are provided. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK/ASSUMPTIONS/PRICING.  Upon notification by Owner, Contractor agrees to provide 

all work necessary to complete the project as more particularly described below: 
 
 

No. Description Est. Qty.  Unit Price Extension 
1. 8” – 2 3’ Spot Liners     2- EA $3,540.00 $7,080.00 

2. Clean & CCTV 1- LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00 

3. Traffic Control  1- LS $1,250.00 $1,250.00 

    $9,830.00 
 
 

Project Specific Notes 
 

1. Pipeline Management Company will prep for spot lining and will place 2- 3’ spot liners in 
the 8” on Grand River West of Pickett from 1A to 2A. 

2. There will be no bond, inspection, permit, or disposal fees. Water will be available at 
hydrants adjacent to work areas throughout the City of Farmington at no cost to PMC.  

3. Vactor debris will be disposed of @ the City of Farmington treatment facility. 
 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Section 2. STANDARD INCLUSIONS AND EXCLUSIONS.  This Agreement includes the following standard 

proposal inclusions and exclusions.   

 
Proposal Inclusions: 

1. Certificate of Insurance not including Primary or Non-Contributory Coverage. 
2. Final deliverables including PDF CCTV reports, CCTV videos, and a file database named after the 

unique pipe identifier for each pipe segment inspected. 
3. Cleaning to be performed with a Jetter/Vac using industry standard nozzles. 
4. Cutting, if authorized, will be performed with industry standard hydro nozzle, carbide root blade, and or 

chain knockers. 
 

Proposal Exclusions: 
1. Please see project specific notes for any exclusions. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Section 3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS.  This Agreement is contingent upon the following terms and conditions: 

 
a. ARBITRATION. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this contract, or the breach thereof, shall be 
settled by arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Commercial Arbitration 
Rules [including the Optional Rules for Emergency Measures of Protection]. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party 
may immediately bring a proceeding seeking preliminary injunctive relief in a court having jurisdiction thereof which shall 



Pipeline Management Company, Inc. • 2673 E. Maple Road • Milford, MI 48381 • Ph.: 248-685-1500 

 
 
remain in effect until a final award is made in the arbitration. If the arbitrator determines that a party has generally prevailed 
in the arbitration proceeding, then the arbitrator shall award to that party its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses related to 
the arbitration, including filing fees, arbitrator compensation, attorney’s fees and legal costs.  The arbitration hearing shall 
take place in Michigan before a single arbitrator. Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any 
court having jurisdiction thereof 
b. Limits of Liability. In consideration of Pipeline’s agreement to maintain no less than $3,000,000 of 
comprehensive general liability Contractor’s liability to the Owner for any matter covered by such insurance will be limited 
to the extent of such insurance and the Owner will indemnify and hold Pipeline harmless from any third-party claims covered 
by such insurance to the extent such claims exceed the limits of such insurance. Neither party shall be liable to the other 
for consequential damages relating to the contract. In case of conflict between this provision and any other provision in the 
Contract as ultimately executed, this provision shall govern and prevail. 
c. LIMITED WARRANTY. IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER EXPRESSED, IMPLIED AND/OR STATUTORY, 
WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE, CONTRACTOR AGREES TO CORRECT ANY DEFECTS IN THE MATERIALS OR SERVICES PROVIDED 
BY CONTRACTOR WHICH ARE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF CONTRACTOR WITHIN ONE YEAR 
FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF CONTRACTOR’S WORK, PROVIDED OWNER AFFORDS CONTRACTOR 
SUITABLE ACCESS AND WORKING CONDITIONS TO ACCOMPLISH SUCH CORRECTION. 
d. MUTUAL RELEASE OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. Neither party shall be liable to the other for 
consequential damages relating to or arising out of the Contract. 
e. UNIT PRICES APPLY.  Quantities are unknown.  Attached T&M prices apply for actual invoice and payment. 
f. INVOICING and PAYMENT.  Payments are due at net within thirty days of invoice. Final payment is due within 
thirty days of invoice date. Monthly progress partial payments may be requested for the value of work in progress or 
completed, including materials secured and on site. 
g. Prices stated are in effect for thirty days from the date of this proposal. The acceptance period may be extended 
at the sole option of Contractor. 
 
THIS AGREEMENT IS EXPRESSLY LIMITED TO AND MADE CONDITIONAL ON OWNER’S ACCEPTANCE OF THE 
TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT AS WELL AS SECTION 2 STANDARD INCLUSIONS AND EXCLUSIONS AND 
SECTION 3 TERMS AND CONDITIONS. CONTRACTOR OBJECTS TO ANY DIFFERENT OR ADDITIONAL TERMS. 
 
CONTRACTOR:                                                OWNER: 

 
Pipeline Management Company, Inc.   City of Farmington  
 
By:                                                                   By: ____________________________ 
 
___________________________________    ________________________________   

Print Name, Title & Date                                                                  Print Name, Title & Date                            

 
This accepted proposal constitutes a formal agreement. If you initiate a purchase order or other contract 

document, it shall not be acknowledged without this accepted proposal as an attachment. 

 



 
 

QUOTATION 
 
To: City of Farmington   Date: 3/21/2024 
 Attn: Mr. Chuck Eudy   Expiration Date:  30 Days From Submittal Date 
 33720 W. 9 Mile Road                         Project Name: Farmington Thomas Street CIPP Lining 

Farmington, MI 48335                          Payment Terms: Net 30–1.5% Int. Per Month Thereafter 
       

PIPELINE MANAGEMENT COMPANY, INC. (hereinafter Contractor or Pipeline) proposes to 
perform the work identified in Section 1 in accordance with the Project’s Contract Documents or 
Owner’s reasonable written direction when no plans are provided. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK/ASSUMPTIONS/PRICING.  Upon notification by Owner, Contractor agrees to provide 

all work necessary to complete the project as more particularly described below: 
 
 

No. Description Est. Qty.  Unit Price Extension 
1. 8” CIPP 1- LS $25,540.00 $25,540.00 

2. Clean & CCTV 1- LS $4,500.00 $4,500.00 

3. Traffic Control  1- LS $1,750.00 $1,750.00 

    $31,790.00 
 
 

Project Specific Notes 
 

1. Pipeline Management Company will prep for CIPP lining and will line the 8” on Grand 
River West of Pickett from 1A to 2A. 

2. There will be no bond, inspection, permit, or disposal fees. Water will be available at 
hydrants adjacent to work areas throughout the City of Farmington at no cost to PMC.  

3. Vactor debris will be disposed of @ the City of Farmington treatment facility. 
 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Section 2. STANDARD INCLUSIONS AND EXCLUSIONS.  This Agreement includes the following standard 

proposal inclusions and exclusions.   

 
Proposal Inclusions: 

1. Certificate of Insurance not including Primary or Non-Contributory Coverage. 
2. Final deliverables including PDF CCTV reports, CCTV videos, and a file database named after the 

unique pipe identifier for each pipe segment inspected. 
3. Cleaning to be performed with a Jetter/Vac using industry standard nozzles. 
4. Cutting, if authorized, will be performed with industry standard hydro nozzle, carbide root blade, and or 

chain knockers. 
 

Proposal Exclusions: 
1. Please see project specific notes for any exclusions. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Section 3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS.  This Agreement is contingent upon the following terms and conditions: 

 
a. ARBITRATION. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this contract, or the breach thereof, shall be 
settled by arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Commercial Arbitration 
Rules [including the Optional Rules for Emergency Measures of Protection]. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party 
may immediately bring a proceeding seeking preliminary injunctive relief in a court having jurisdiction thereof which shall 



Pipeline Management Company, Inc. • 2673 E. Maple Road • Milford, MI 48381 • Ph.: 248-685-1500 

 
 
remain in effect until a final award is made in the arbitration. If the arbitrator determines that a party has generally prevailed 
in the arbitration proceeding, then the arbitrator shall award to that party its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses related to 
the arbitration, including filing fees, arbitrator compensation, attorney’s fees and legal costs.  The arbitration hearing shall 
take place in Michigan before a single arbitrator. Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any 
court having jurisdiction thereof 
b. Limits of Liability. In consideration of Pipeline’s agreement to maintain no less than $3,000,000 of 
comprehensive general liability Contractor’s liability to the Owner for any matter covered by such insurance will be limited 
to the extent of such insurance and the Owner will indemnify and hold Pipeline harmless from any third-party claims covered 
by such insurance to the extent such claims exceed the limits of such insurance. Neither party shall be liable to the other 
for consequential damages relating to the contract. In case of conflict between this provision and any other provision in the 
Contract as ultimately executed, this provision shall govern and prevail. 
c. LIMITED WARRANTY. IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER EXPRESSED, IMPLIED AND/OR STATUTORY, 
WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE, CONTRACTOR AGREES TO CORRECT ANY DEFECTS IN THE MATERIALS OR SERVICES PROVIDED 
BY CONTRACTOR WHICH ARE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF CONTRACTOR WITHIN ONE YEAR 
FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF CONTRACTOR’S WORK, PROVIDED OWNER AFFORDS CONTRACTOR 
SUITABLE ACCESS AND WORKING CONDITIONS TO ACCOMPLISH SUCH CORRECTION. 
d. MUTUAL RELEASE OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. Neither party shall be liable to the other for 
consequential damages relating to or arising out of the Contract. 
e. UNIT PRICES APPLY.  Quantities are unknown.  Attached T&M prices apply for actual invoice and payment. 
f. INVOICING and PAYMENT.  Payments are due at net within thirty days of invoice. Final payment is due within 
thirty days of invoice date. Monthly progress partial payments may be requested for the value of work in progress or 
completed, including materials secured and on site. 
g. Prices stated are in effect for thirty days from the date of this proposal. The acceptance period may be extended 
at the sole option of Contractor. 
 
THIS AGREEMENT IS EXPRESSLY LIMITED TO AND MADE CONDITIONAL ON OWNER’S ACCEPTANCE OF THE 
TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT AS WELL AS SECTION 2 STANDARD INCLUSIONS AND EXCLUSIONS AND 
SECTION 3 TERMS AND CONDITIONS. CONTRACTOR OBJECTS TO ANY DIFFERENT OR ADDITIONAL TERMS. 
 
CONTRACTOR:                                                OWNER: 

 
Pipeline Management Company, Inc.   City of Farmington  
 
By:                                                                   By: ____________________________ 
 
___________________________________    ________________________________   

Print Name, Title & Date                                                                  Print Name, Title & Date                            

 
This accepted proposal constitutes a formal agreement. If you initiate a purchase order or other contract 

document, it shall not be acknowledged without this accepted proposal as an attachment. 

 



 
 
 

 

September 13, 2024 
 
 
Mr. Chuck Eudy 
Public Works Superintendent 
City of Farmington 
33720 W. 9 Mile Rd. 
Farmington, MI 48335 
 
RE: Recommendation of Award – Sanitary Sewer Lining 
 
Dear Mr. Eudy: 
 
Recently, the City discovered a sinkhole in the Grand River right-of-way (ROW), east of 34225 Grand River Ave 
near Pickett Street. It was determined that this sinkhole was the result of two failed segments of sanitary sewer. 
Similarly, the City is currently in the process of dealing with emergency sanitary sewer pipe lining along Farmington 
Road. For this emergency lining work, they have contracted Pipeline Management Co., Inc., located at 2673 E. Maple 
Road, Milford, MI, 48381 to complete the repairs. It has been determined that the failing sanitary sewer, east of 
34225 Grand River Ave, is able to be lined and does not have to be open-cut to remove and replace the pipe 
segments. Due to this, the currently contracted Pipeline Management Co., Inc. was asked to provide a quote to line 
this sewer segment while they are in town working along Farmington Road. 
 
The quote provided by Pipeline Management has been reviewed and accepted by OHM Advisors as a competitive 
price. OHM and the City of Farmington have had favorable experience working with this contractor within the City 
over the past several years and expect this to continue. 
 
Based on the above evaluation, it is recommended that this sanitary sewer lining project contract be 
awarded to Pipeline Management Co., Inc. of Milford, MI in the not to exceed amount of $31,790.00.  
 
We look forward to continuing to provide our professional services on this project, as needed, through the 
construction phase of work. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out. 
 
Sincerely, 
OHM Advisors 
 

     
   __________________________________ 
 

Matthew D. Parks, P.E.     Austin Downie, P.E. 
 
cc: David Murphy, City Manager 
 File 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\0101_0125\0111240080_Sanitary_Sewer_Assistance\PM\Correspondence\Sanitary Sewer Assistance_Pipeline_Recommendation of Award_9-13-
2024.docx 



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: Sept. 16, 2024 

Item 
Number 

7E 

Submitted by: Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic: Emergency Sanitary Sewer Lining 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to approve Emergency Sanitary Sewer Lining Payment to Pipeline Management in the 
amount of $40,300 for work completed during the month of August 2024. 
Background: 
Last month, Council approved Pipeline Management to conduct emergency sanitary sewer 
CIPP lining in three locations.  Pipeline Management has conducted pre-lining cleaning and 
CCTV at Kensington Manor, Thomas Street and Farmington Glen.   

Pipeline Management proposes to begin the installation of the CIPP liner the week of 
September 23, 2024.  

The emergency lining contract did not specify the ability for the City to implement retainage for 
invoices.  However, the last payment will be held until Orchard Hiltz & McCliment receives all 
post lining CCTV inspections and contractor’s declaration confirming all sub-contractors and 
material suppliers have received payment for services.  

Materials: 
Pipeline Management Invoice 24-01784 



Invoice Date: 08/31/2024 Terms: Net 30 Due Date: 09/30/2024 Customer Id: C-015279 Page 1

                                                                     INVOICE
Invoice #: 24-01784
Invoice Date: 08/31/2024
Due Date: 09/30/2024
Terms: Net 30

       Contract No: 2024-197

Bill To:
City of Farmington
Chuck Eudy
33720 W 9 Mile Rd
Farmington, MI  48335
United States

Project Reference: CIPP Lining - 3 Locations 8/1/24-8/31/24 

Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

Kensington Manor - Clean & CCTV 1 LS $18,810.00 $18,810.00
Kensington Manor - Traffic Control 1 LS $4,950.00 $4,950.00
Thomas Street - Clean & CCTV 1 LS $12,540.00 $12,540.00
Thomas Street - Traffic Control 1 LS $1,750.00 $1,750.00
Farmington Glen - Clean & CCTV 1 LS $2,250.00 $2,250.00

Please call 248-685-1500 if you have any questions concerning this invoice

Thank you for your business!

Total Invoice Amount: $40,300.00

2673 E Maple Road
Milford, MI 48381

Ph: (248) 685-1500
Fax: (248) 685-7615



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: September 16, 2024 

Item 
Number 

7F 

Submitted by: Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic:  Recommendation of Award 

Proposed Motion:  
Move to award the Warner Home Grant Funding Exterior Repairs Phase 1 to R. Graham 
Construction LLC in the amount of $43,500 subject to any minor amendments to the final form 
recommended by the Architect, City Manager’s office or the City Attorney’s office. 

Background: 
The Warner Mansion ad hoc committee met to consider the initial scope of action to preserve 
the condition of the Warner Home using the Grant Funding to the City of Farmington received 
from the State of Michigan.   

Two improvement projects have been completed at the Warner Home.  The first improvement 
project, completed by R. Graham Construction, stabilized the rear addition by installing a code-
compliant foundation under the rear addition, installing structural support for the second floor 
addition & bathroom.  The second improvement project included replacing the main home roof, 
the porch foundations, columns, porch stairs, and the low pitch porch roof by R. Graham 
Construction.   

The Grant Funding Exterior Repairs will include replacing the remaining shingle roofs on the 
gardeners shed, outdoor kitchen, outdoor restroom, and cedar shakes on the Gazebo;  
replacing the low-pitch second floor roof;  tuckpoint the three false chimneys, and one former 
operational chimney; as well as, replacing the rear porch roof framing members, sheathing, 
columns, and shingles.  The chimney tuckpointing may require the chimneys to be torn down to 
the coin work then reconstructed and a new cap installed in replicating to the current chimney 
design and appearance.        

Council Member, Steve Schneemann, Ad hoc Committee Member will be providing R. Graham 
Construction renderings of the rear porch hand railing.  Mr. Schneemann’s services will be gratis 
for the City of Farmington and R. Graham Construction.  The rear porch railing will be installed 
by R. Graham Construction but is not included within the cost of this project.    

Public Works Superintendent and the Warner Home Grant Funding Ad hoc Committee 
recommends awarding the Warner Home Grant Funding Exterior Repairs Phase 1 to R. 
Graham Construction LLC of Farmington, Mich. in the amount of $39,500 and to include a 10% 
contingency of $4,000, totaling $43,500.  

Materials: 
R. Graham Construction, LLC Proposal dated 9/10/2024



























 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date:  September 16, 2024 

Item 
Number 

7G 

Submitted by: Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic: DPW Roof Seam Repair 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to approve the DPW Roof Repair to Newton Crane Roofing Incorporated in the amount of 
$18,500 for seam repairs to the front section of the DPW Garage & Storage areas.  

Background:   
On several occasions City Administration has considered requesting funds and this Fiscal Year 
requested funding to be allocated for the DPW roof replacement.  The funds were allocated to 
begin planning a multi-year (5 year) roof replacement project.  After contacting several roofing 
contractors to provide quotes for the replacement, we were advised a roofing replacement 
program should only be a 2-year project for the DPW building.  The insufficient funding for the 
roof replacement was re-allocated to the DPW concrete replacement/fuel island improvement 
project, which has a remaining balance of approximately $34,000. 
 
The DPW Garage, and Storage area roof were last replaced in 1991, with a 15-year warranty.  
Other segments of the DPW Garage & Storage areas date to 1988 and 1977.  The most 
problematic segment of the 1991 roof is over the boiler-room, Permanent Document Storage 
and vehicle storage.  During wet weather, the roof insulation becomes saturated and leaks in 
multiple areas. 
 
Budgetary numbers from two contractors and Roofing Technology Associates LTD. 
Recommend allocating $850,000 for the roof replacement in one season.  City Administration 
will be reviewing building and infrastructure needs as the budgeting season begins.  The top two  
building improvements are the salt dome replacement and DPW roof totaling $2,000,000.  Seam 
repairs to the DPW building cannot be delayed and must be completed before the winter. 
 
City Administration recommends approving the proposal from Newton Crane Roofing 
Incorporated of Pontiac, Mich. in the amount of $16,650 with approximately 10% contingency, 
totaling $18,500 for DPW Roof seam repairs on the southern section of the DPW Garage area.           
         
 
 
 
Materials:  
Newton Crane Proposal 
CEI Michigan LLC Proposal 



Newton Crane Roofing, Inc. 
“American Pride, Quality Craftsmanship” 

353 North Cass Avenue 

Pontiac, MI 48342-1009 

Ph# 248-332-3021  / Fax# 248-332-2302 

 

Farmington Public Works          7/15/2024 

Re: Roof Repair @ Farmington DPW – 33720 West 9 Mile, Farmington 

 

During a recent leak investigation, we located the cause of the issue was failed seams on the 

ballasted EPDM roof.  At this time we would highly recommend this roof be replaced as it has far 

exceeded its life expectancy.  If replacement is not an option, then we would recommend all 

seams be sealed using EPDM membrane.  Please note that even if this work is completed future 

leaks should be expected.  Please see our scope of work provided below: 

 

Scope of Work  

1. Clear ballast away from the seams. 

2. Properly clean the membrane to allow for the new membrane to be installed. 

3. Install new EPDM membrane over the 900’ of seams and properly roll into place per 

the Elevate Specification. 

4. Put ballast back over the seams. 

5. Remove all roofing related debris and dispose of properly 

 

Our price to complete the above stated work is--------------------------------------$16,650.00 

 

 

Clarifications 

1. The job is bid to be completed during normal working hours. 

2. Job is to be completed as weather permits. 

3. Noise from this work can be expected. 

4. If this work is not accepted, then an invoice will be sent for work already performed. 

5. Future leaks should be expected due to the age and condition of the existing roof system. 

 

Thank you for letting us quote you on this project. If you have any question, please call me @ 

248-332-3021. Please sign and return a copy of this proposal for acceptance. 

 

Sincerely,     Date: _____/_____/_____ 

 

Andy Cody  
Andy Cody     Accepted by ___________________________ 

 

 



 

THIS IS THE 

ROOF SECTION 

WE WILL BE 

SEALING THE 

SEAMS ON. 



��()�&*�+	���
�(&

�� ,��-%.(�����'%�/&	0
+	���
�(&
����������

+	���
�(&
�1�-
�� ,��-%.(�����'%�/&	0
+	���
�(&
����

��23&���1��������

456789:; <%�(�&
��

48=5;   ���<>�+(

45?@865AB: 1	C%�/&.�%D

E?9F9GBHIJB75; ��2��2,�,�

�'%	.%���%�D�
%K(�(&�(�%�0%*���%
��%.�)&��	�(�&��L%�*&���%�	����(�%
�(&(	'��.��
��	
0�0	(%�#�%�%
�
0��	(%0

J5M8685:685G
N �%
�<%	�.����%��%
�)!�"���2��2,�,�

O�	
(�()�������+

1%*���%
�)���%
�.%	�.��
�(�%�#	(%���&&*�
���%���	
%�	�%�()���	'')

�	�.%0��)�*	�'�
��.%	��	0�%.�C%.��&��'%0�#�(���%���	
%�.���
D	�%$

�&��%�(�C%�P�(�&
��Q�%��&&*��	''	.(�#�''��%��&C%0�	#	)�*�&��(�%�.%	�.

�	���&K$����R!$�Q�%�	�%	�.���&�
0�
��(�%�&�%
�.%	�.�#�''���%��'%	
%0$��P

	0�%�%0���%�%�&*��&C%��.(����#�''��%��
.(	''%0�&C%��(�%�.%	�$�Q�%�0�.�'	�%0

�	''	.(�#�''��%���.�%0��	�D$

SG78AB75TIU5FB8?IV9G7;IWNXYZ[[\[[

]̂ _̀abacdae

CEI Michigan, LLC
PO Box 310
Hamburg, MI 48139
517-548-0039  x138



��()�&*�+	���
�(&

�� ,��-%.(�����'%�/&	0
+	���
�(&
����������

+	���
�(&
�1�-
�� ,��-%.(�����'%�/&	0
+	���
�(&
����

��23&���1��������

4567895:;< 1	=%�/&.�%>

?6@A@B;CDE;F5G ��2��2,�,�

�HI��JK�K�/�L

J%(���$���%0�(��	�0.�H��%�(%0���	''��� "���"�����%M($��,�

HNK�/�OHK�J�K��/���1

L��
	(��%��PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP�1	(%��PPPPPPPPP�Q�PPPPPPPPP

���
(%0�J	�%�PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP���R�PPPPPPPPPPP

���%�%�)�	�(�&��S%�(&��	=%�(�%�	�&=%�0%*���%
��%.��%�	��%0$

TUVWXVYXZ[\YW\]Y]ŴV_Ŷ̀V\YaWbŶcdY
efYXgW\YW\]YVhWZUŶcdY]VfVifjgVZ[fcklUUgmgchnY]fcXZVijgVZ[fcklUUgmgch

TW[VYoYcaYo



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date:  September 16, 2024 

Reference 
Number 

Submitted by:  DDA Director 

Description   Consideration of the Fourth Amended Resolution Designating The City of 
Farmington "Syndicate" Social District and Defining the Commons Area to include new 
eligible license holders. 

Requested Action    To approve  the Fourth Amended Resolution Designating The City of 
Farmington "Syndicate" Social District and Defining the Commons Area to include new 
eligible license holders, a commons areas and adopting a management and maintenance 
plan in order to allow certain on-premises liquor licensees use of shared areas for 
consumption of alcohol pursuant to Public Act 124 of 2020. 

Background   
The State of Michigan enacted a new law intended to spur economic activity and 
provide flexibility for hospitality businesses by enabling the on-site sale and off-site 
consumption of alcoholic beverages in designated “Social District” areas. 

On July 1, 2020, Governor Whitmer signed House Bill 5781 into law (MCL 436.1551) 
creating the “Social District Permit,” which allows local governments to designate a 
Social District within their jurisdictions. Businesses that are granted a Social District 
Permit may sell alcoholic liquor (beer, wine, mixed spirits, or mixed drinks) on their 
licensed premises to customers who may then consume the alcoholic liquor within the 
commons area of the Social District. Permit Information local governments may now 
designate a Social District that contains a “commons area.” Once designated, “qualified 
licensees” whose licensed premises are contiguous to the commons area within the 
Social District and who obtain a license from the Michigan Liquor Control Commission 
(MLCC) may permit patrons to leave the licensed premises with the alcohol and 
consume it within the commons area. 

As more businesses add these permits, the Social District may be amended by City 
Council by amending the Resolution to expand or modify the District. The following 
amendments are recommended to accommodate new businesses joining the social 
district: 

• Update business list to additional eligible licensees (The Farmington Tasting
Room, LLC, Good Food Farmington, LLC, and Lone Light Spirits, LLC)

Documents have been updated and will be submitted to MLCC. 
Attachment 

•Social District Plan with Map
Revised List of Eligible Licensees

Agenda Review 
Department Head Finance/Treasurer City Attorney City Manager 

7H



STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

CITY OF FARMINGTON 

FOURTH AMENDED RESOLUTION DESIGNATING SOCIAL DISTRICTS CONTAINING 
COMMONS AREAS AND ADOPTING A MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
IN ORDER TO ALLOW CERTAIN ON-PREMISES LIQUOR LICENSEES USE OF SHARED 
AREAS FOR CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL PURSUANT TO PUBLIC ACT 124 OF 
2020. 

 
RECITATIONS: 

 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Liquor Control Code was amended by 2020 Public Act 124 (the Act) 

to allow the governing body of a local governmental unit to designate social 
districts and commons areas which may be used by qualified licensees to obtain 
a social district permit from the Michigan Liquor Control Council (MLCC) to utilize 
expanded areas for the consumption of alcohol; and 

WHEREAS, if the governing body of a local governmental unit designates a social district that 
contains a commons area, the governing body must define and clearly mark the 
commons area with signs, establish local management and maintenance plans 
including, but not limited to, hours of operation for submittal to the MLCC, and 
maintain the commons areas in a manner that protects the health and safety of 
the community; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that designating social districts and commons areas pursuant 
to the Act is in the best interests of the citizens of the City of Farmington. 

WHEREAS, the City of Farmington Social District shall be created and managed by the City 
through a collaboration with its Downtown Development Authority; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council designates the social districts and 
commons areas as provided on the attached maps, establishes the attached management plan, 
has identified and approves the attached list of qualified license holders for a Social District 
Permit, and authorizes the City Manager or his designee to take all such other actions necessary 
to implement this Resolution and comply with the Act.  
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT City Council has also identified and approves the 
attached list of potential qualified license holders for a Social District Permit, and authorizes the 
City Manager or his designee to take all such other actions necessary in order to implement this 
Resolution and comply with the Act 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the City Clerk is authorized and directed to forward this 
Resolution and the attached maps and management and maintenance plans to the MLCC as 
required by the Act together with this Resolution.   



 
AYES: 

 
NAYS: 

 
ABSTENTIONS: 

 
ABSENT: 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Farmington at a meeting duly called and held on September 16, 2024. 

CITY OF FARMINGTON 
 
 

MEAGHAN BACHMAN, CLERK 



CITY OF FARMINGTON 
OAKLAND COUNTY 
STATE of MICHIGAN 

SOCIAL DISTRICT PLAN 

Introduction: 
The City of Farmington, in coordination with the Downtown Development Authority, established a 
Social District to take advantage of Michigan Public Act 124 of 2020 signed into law on July 1, 2020. 
This is enabled legislation that would allow Michigan municipalities to establish Social Districts that 
would allow for “common area” where two or more contiguous licensed establishments (bars, 
distilleries, breweries, restaurants and tasting rooms) could sell alcoholic beverages in designated 
containers to be taken into the area for consumption.  City of Farmington Ordinance C799-2020, 
adopted by City Council October 19, 2020.  City of Farmington has the Social District map and the 
policies, parameters and management of this new community development tool.  The City of 
Farmington Social District Plan was implemented in December 2020.

The following amendments are recommended to include new businesses, and changes are 
highlighted below:

• Update business list to include all eligible and potential licensees within the
established boundaries adding Sante Wine Tasting Room, Spruce and Ash, and
Lone Line Spirits

Management: 
The City of Farmington Social District, branded as the “Syndicate”, would be created and managed by 
the City through its City Manager and Downtown Development Authority Director.  The district 
management and operations will be assisted by the Department of Public Safety and Department of 
Public Works.   

District Boundaries:  
The “Syndicate” Social District Map is included in this document.  (Exhibit A)  It is contained entirely 
within the DDA district boundaries.  Streets in the social district would remain open to traffic and for 
parking.  The district and the common area include all downtown core businesses with liquor licenses. 
They are geographically eligible but must apply individually for a permit with MLCC to participate. 

Potential Participating License Holders: 
Businesses with liquor licenses in the social district are: Basement Burger Bar/1 UpArcade Bar, Los 
Tres Amigos, Farmington Brewing Co, Mi.Mosa, Sidecar Slider Bar, Krazy Crab, Masa, Loft Cigar 
Lounge, John Cowley & Sons, Heights Brewing, Taques Bar & Grill, Sante Wine Tasting Room, Spruce 
and Ash, and Lone Light Spirits.

Participating license holders would be asked to sign a Social District agreement with the City, which 

must approve social district permits issued by the MLCC.  This allows a license holder to sell alcoholic 

jwestendorf
Highlight

jwestendorf
Highlight

jwestendorf
Highlight



beverages in specially designated and marked containers in its service area to be taken into the 
commons area for consumption. 

Operations:  
The City of Farmington Social District, the “Syndicate” would operate annually, seven days a week, from 
8:00am to 10:00pm.  After 10:00pm, Social District beverages cannot be sold in participating 
establishments nor possessed and consumed in the common area.  After 10:00pm, consumption of 
alcoholic beverages must be contained within the license holders’ service areas.   

It is the intent of the City to begin implementing the “Syndicate” Social District upon approval from the 
MLCC. 

District Designation and Marking: 
The Boundaries of the “Syndicate” Social District would be clearly designated and marked with signs and 
graphics on streets and sidewalks.  The signs would be accompanied by intermittent trash receptacles 
for customers to dispose of used district cups as they exit the district. 

Social District Financing: 
The City of Farmington Social District, the “Syndicate” will be funded by the Downtown Development 
Authority and local businesses. 

Social District Logo: 
The “Syndicate” will be branded for marketing purposes and must have a special logo for use on the 
non-glass district beverage cups of no more than 16 ounces.  The cups, purchased by the license holder, 
must also have a logo or name identifying the establishment.  A “Syndicate” Social District cup may not 
be reused, must remain in the establishment where they were purchased or in the common area, and 
may not be taken into an establishment that did not sell the beverage.  The “Syndicate” Social District 
stickered logo will be placed on each cup and it will be the license holder’s responsibility to place their 
own logo or name on the cup to be in compliance.   

Security/Enforcement: 
Security and enforcement in the “Syndicate” Social District will be provided by the City of Farmington 
Public Safety Department. 

Insurance: 
The City will insure its management and operation of the “Syndicate” Social District through its 
municipal umbrella insurance policy.  Participating license holders would be left to secure their own 
liability insurance. 

Sanitation: 
The Farmington DPW will provide sanitation within the district including trash removal, litter pick-up on 
a daily basis, with support from DDA contractors as required.   

jwestendorf
Highlight



Marketing and Promotion:  
The “Syndicate” Social District does have a branded name for marketing purposes and a distinctive logo.  
Marketing will be done through traditional free media and paid advertising along with social media.  
“Syndicate” social media will be distributed through DDA accounts. 

Festivals/Special Events: 
The state’s Social District law does not allow special event liquor licenses to participate in a Social 
District. 



City of Farmington- Social District Qualified Licensees 

These licensees are located within the City of Farmington Social District. 

The designated common area is the entire social district. 

City of Farmington - Potential Qualified Licensees for Social District 



TAQUES BAR 
& GRILL

LOFT 
CIGAR 

LOUNGE

SPRUCE 
AND ASH

SANTE WINE 
TASTING ROOM

LONE LIGHT 
SPIRITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 120'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSOCIAL DISTRICT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE DATE: 2-26-2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
RILEY PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAZEBO PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINAN PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MI.MOSA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIGHT'S BREWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FARMINGTON BREW

AutoCAD SHX Text
1UP ARCADE BAR & BASEMENT BURGER BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOS TRES AMIGOS

AutoCAD SHX Text
KRAZY CRAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDECAR SLIDER BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDOWNTOWN FARMINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
FARMINGTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAND RIVER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROVE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHIVE KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND RESTAURANT SOCIAL DISTRICT AND COMMON AREA "SYNDICATE" SIGN (QTY.: 47) INFORMATION SIGN (QTY.: 14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAQES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWNDOG BARLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN COWLEY AND SON'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEMORIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASONIC PLAZA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUEBERRY BRUNCH



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: September 16, 2024 

Item 
Number 

7I 

Submitted by:   David Murphy, City Manager 
Agenda Topic:  Consideration to Amend Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget 

Proposed Motion:   

Move to adopt Budget Amendment Resolution #4, amending Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget. 

Background:   

At the August 19, 2024 council meeting, Council approved emergency sewer repairs to Conroy 
Court and Farmington Road.  Budget Amendment #4 provides funding for these projects. 

Materials:  Budget Amendment Resolution #4 2024-25 



Budget Amendment No 4
Fund: Water and Sewer Fund

Capital Outlay $64,115
Reduction of Fund Balance $64,115

To provide funding for sewer repairs on Conroy Court

Fund: Water and Sewer Fund
Capital Outlay $338,742

Reduction of Fund Balance $338,742

To provide funding for sewer repairs on Farmington Road

Roll Call:
Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED
MEAGHAN BACHMAN, CITY CLERK

CITY OF FARMINGTON

RESOLUTION ____________________

Motion by,______________________________seconded by,_________________________________                          

WHEREAS, at the August 19, 2024 council meeting, Council approved emergency sewer repairs to 
Farmington Road and Conroy Court; and

WHEREAS, the Budget does not currently contain funding for these repairs; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Farmington City Council hereby amends the FY 2024/25 
Budget as shown below.



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: September 16, 2024 

 
 

Informational 

Submitted by:  Melissa Andrade, Assistant to the City Manager 
 
 
Agenda Topic:  Minutes from City’s Boards and Commissions  
 
 
CIA: September meeting canceled 
DDA: July 2024 
Historical: August meeting canceled 
Parking:  No quorum in July 
Pathways: August 2024 
Planning: September meeting canceled 
ZBA: September meeting canceled 
Library: August 2024 
Commission on Aging: June minutes not yet posted 
Farmington/Farmington Hills Arts Commission: June minutes not yet posted 
Commission on Children, Youth and Families: June 2024 
Emergency Preparedness Committee: July 2024 
Bicentennial Committee: August 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



[Type here] 
 
    

   8:00AM Wednesday, July 10, 2024 
   City Hall Conference Room 
   23600 Liberty Street 

Farmington, MI 48335 
 
 
 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 

MINUTES 
1. Roll Call  
Present: Linda Deskins, Sean Murphy, Todd Craft, Tom Pascaris, Shawn Kavanagh, James 
McLaughlan, Don Singleton, Claire Perko 
Absent: Johnna Balk 
Others Present: Kate Knight, Jess Westendorf 
 
2. Approval of Consent Agenda 
 a. Minutes: October 24, 2023 DDA Public Art Committee Meeting 
 b. Minutes: April 11, 2024 DDA Design Committee Meeting 

c. Minutes: June 5, 2024 Regular Meeting 
Motion by Tom Pascaris, seconded by James McLaughlan to approve the consent 
agenda. Motion passed unanimously. 

  
3. Approval of Regular Agenda  
Motion by Murphy, seconded by Deskins to approve the items on the regular agenda. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
4. Public Comment 
Opened and closed by Craft at 8:02. 
 
5. Financial Report 
Overview by Knight. 
 
6. Executive Director Report 
After June 5 Board meeting we hosted the CEO of Main Street Erin Barnes for a tour of 
Downtown Farmington. Won two categories at the MSOC Awards. Mobility on Main Street for 
Farmington Rd Streetscape and Spirit of Main Street for Farmington Bicentennial. 
Founders is returning for its 60th year. Same event footprint as previous years. 
Received bid for Masons Corner and are working through costing and value engineering. We’ll 
plan to have a joint meeting with DDA Board and City Council to review the bid. 
More businesses have opened since our last meeting: Road Less Traveled opened last week 
with a beautiful painted sign. 
Bicentennial committee is working on a mural program for the Fresh Thyme alley. 
We posted our community survey for the mural program through DIA. 
We hustled to apply for Match on Main Grant and received the word that we were awarded a 
25K grant for Lone Light Spirits! 
MSHDA grant in progress for $192K for Masons Corner to reimburse city for their contribution. 
We’ve decided to apply for Great American Main Street (GAMSA). Application is due at the end 
of July and we will need help from our team at MSOC for analytics and some materials. 
 
7. Consideration to Accept Patron Public Art Donation and Allocate Same Funds 

Toward Public Art Project 



[Type here] 
 
Motion by Singleton, seconded by Deskins to authorize DDA director to pay Detroit 
Design Center down payment of $55,000 toward creation of public art sculpture upon 
receipt of patron donation of $55,000, with future balance of $55,000 due upon 
installation of final work and receipt of final $55,000 from patron. Motion passes 
unanimously via roll call. 
 
Ayes: 8 Singleton, McLaughlan, Kavanagh, Pascaris, Craft, Murphy, Perko, Deskins 
Nays: 0 
Absent: 1 
 
8. Consideration to Publish Annual TIF Report and Public Informational Meetings 
Motion by Murphy, second by Kavanagh to authorize the publication of the Fiscal Year 
2023-24 Annual Report, funds to be derived from Miscellaneous Expenses, Account 
#248-00.000-956.000. Motion passes unanimously. 
 
9. Committee Updates: 
  

a. Promotions Committee 
Merchant group is meeting 7/30. 

 
b. Organization Committee 

Congratulations to Deskins for a fantastic volunteer appreciation event last night. Deskins 
reported record attendance with 90 attendees and 64 volunteers pre-registered for Harvest 
Moon already. 
 

c. Business Development Committee 
Nothing significant to report but a lot of collaboration is in progress. Interested in hosting an 
Opening Day event for the Lions and possibilities for West Farmington viewing party in the 
parking lot. September 8th. 
 

d. Design Committee 
Masons corner – plugging away. Will be reviewing revisions in more detail and are getting 
closer to our estimate. Reviewing geometry of Detroit Design Center swing. 
 

e. Public Art Committee 
PIPA (Partners in Public Art) survey went out last night. Keep an eye out for it and share your 
feedback. 
  
10.  Other Business 
Craft: Keep dates in mind including the potential joint meeting on August 5th. Public meeting for 
the Hillside Townes was last night with a full house, showing strong interest from the 
community. 
Knight: We will need to appoint a parking committee representative from the DDA Board. Tom 
Pascaris volunteered. Solicitation of letter of support for GAMSA application coming soon from 
Knight. 
 
11. Board Comment 
Singleton: Great event yesterday! 
Craft: Thank you, staff, thank you Linda for the event last night. Expressed appreciation for 
board and volunteer time invested. 
 
12. Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn by Singleton, seconded by Deskins. Motion passes unanimously. 



 
 

FARMINGTON PATHWAYS COMMITTEE 
 
 

 6:00 p.m.                   MINUTES            AUGUST 14, 2024 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 6:03 pm 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Tim Prince, Joe VanDerZanden, Maria Taylor, Heather Davies 

 
Absent: Jamie Palmisano, Chris Weber, Sue Lover, Bill Gessaman 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Motion to approve by Maria and supported by Heather, approved unanimously. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a. MEETING MINUTES, JULY 10, 2024 

Motion to approve by Maria and supported by Heather, approved unanimously. 
 

 
5. OLD BUSINESS 

 
a. GRAND RIVER AND FARMINGTON CROSSROAD DISCUSSION AND 

WALKING TOUR 
The walking audit route for the day was discussed, planning to identify and 
prioritize locations along Grand River and the downtown area that could benefit 
from additional crosswalks to increase pedestrian safety and walkability, evaluate 
viability for crosswalks given MDOT criteria, and identify additional pathways 
related issues and project ideas on the walking route.   
 
It was decided to begin the walk on Grand River going west until at least the 
intersection with Shiawassee and Locust streets then include some of Grand 
River east of Grand River and some of Farmington Rd. 
 
The walking assessment that followed the meeting included Grand River 
between Shiawassee/Locust St. to Power, and Farmington Rd. between Grand 
River and Freedom Rd. 
 
Heather marked identified locations for possible crosswalks on a map during the 
walk as well as other locations with issues to discuss at the next meeting. 
 
Clare Norgard, a photographer, came along to take photos for the city of the 
Pathways Committee on the walk. 
 
Committee members discussed planning future walks to cover the rest of Grand 
River.  Due to limited time to identify areas to include in the upcoming master 
plan updates, committee members discussed planning to walk the other sections 
of Grand River on their own to report and discuss at the September meeting. 
 
The walking audit immediately followed adjournment of the meeting. 
 

b. MASTER PLAN PROJECTS LIST 



 
The forming of a Master Plan Steering Committee was discussed, including that 
Tim had already expressed interest in joining and the benefit of having a 
Pathways Committee member participating to have input.  The steering 
committee has yet to be formed. 
Committee members identified several projects to consider for inclusion in the 
upcoming updated master plans including:  
-The Farmington portion of the 9 Mile Non-motorized Pathway Project 
-Adding additional crosswalks to Grand River and Farmington Rd. 
-Pump track project 
-McGee Hill Bridge and adjoining park/pathway to Heritage Park 
-The planned art park/pathway to the Hillside Townes condos and upcoming 
Mason’s Corner Park. 
-It was also suggested that shade be added to existing and future parks such as 
the addition of awnings, structures or artistic installations that could also provide 
shade. 
-Community survey of interests in proposed projects and community interests 
and ideas. 
-Joe suggested that the Project One Pagers be reviewed at the next meeting to 
consider for suggested inclusion in the master plan updates. 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. ANY NEW TARGET AREAS? 
 
Discussed a concern identified by Kevin Parkins, former Pathways Committee 
member and City Council member, that trees are blocking drivers from seeing 
the crosswalk signs for the crosswalk on Farmington Rd. by the CVS.  
Committee members planned to assess this on the walking audit. 
 
Maria reported she received a citizen comment via email identifying the needs for 
a crosswalk near the Sidecar Slider Bar due to frequent unsafe jaywalking in that 
area.  The identified project of adding a crosswalk near the Krazy Krab would 
help address this need. 
 
Maria shared that the bicentennial mural/pedestrian corridor between Fresh 
Thyme and the My Salon is scheduled to have a grand opening event on 9/25 
around 5:30 or 6 pm. Work has yet to begin but murals and string lights are 
scheduled to be installed before the opening on 9/25.  She shared that it is 
scheduled to coincide with a local mayors’ organization (SOCMA) dinner event to 
draw the attention of attendants to the event and project.  
 

b. ANY NEW CITY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS? 
None discussed. 

 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 

8. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENT 
None 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT  6:21 pm. 
 
 

Next meeting:  SEPTEMBER 11, 2024 
 



 Farmington Community Library Board of Trustees 
 Board Meeting - 6:00 p.m. - August 8, 2024 

 

 

Board Members Present: McClellan, Muthukuda, Brown, White, Snodgrass, Murphy, one 

vacant seat 

 

Board Members Absent:  Doby 

 

Staff Members Present:  Siegrist, Baker, Showich-Gallup, Peterson 

 

Staff Members Absent:  None 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Regular Board Meeting was called to order at 6:01 by President Ernie McClellan.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION by Murphy to approve the Agenda for the August 8, 2024, Board meeting was 

supported by Brown.  

Vote: Aye:  All in favor (6-0) 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

MOTION by White to approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held July 11, 2024 was 

supported by Muthukuda. 

Vote: Aye:  All in favor (6-0) 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 

TREASURER’S REPORT 

MOTION by Brown to approve paying July operating bills totaling $384,804.82 was supported 

by Snodgrass. 

Vote: Aye:  All in favor (6-0) 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 

MOTION by Brown to receive and file the July 2024 financial reports was supported by Murphy. 

Vote: Aye:  All in favor (6-0) 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 



 Farmington Community Library Board of Trustees 
 Board Meeting - 6:00 p.m. - July 11, 2024 

 

FRIENDS’ REPORT 

• No report 

 

LIBRARY DIRECTOR’S REPORT (K. Siegrist) 

• Library Extravaganza to be held on September 15 (last held in 2022). Downtown branch will 

be closed this day.  

• Twelve Mile will be closed all day on August 22 while water meter valve work is completed 

(water will be shut off). 

• 24/7 Hold Pickup Lockers are anticipated to be ready for use by early September.  

• Friends will host author Viola Shipman on October 21. Registration required.  

• Former Heritage Room now contains 3-D printer, Cricut, and part of Library of Things. 

Heritage materials are now archived or in general collection. Digitization of archived materials 

is ongoing.  

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None. 

 

SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES 

Finance (K. Brown) 

• Transfer of $4,000,000 to MiClass approved at July meeting will now take place after K. 

Brown has further investigated potential interest-earning options at Comerica.  

• Director and board treasurer have ability to make transfers. Board president and Plante Moran 

are notified of any activity.  

 

Personnel (D. Muthukuda) 

MOTION by Murphy to approve the revised director evaluation tool was supported by Brown. 

Vote: Aye:  All in favor (6-0) 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 

• Director will submit self-evaluation to D. Muthukuda by August 25, if not sooner, and D. 

Muthukuda will distribute to board. Board members will return their evaluations of director to 

D. Muthukuda before September 11. 

 

Master Plan 

• No report 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Committee Assignments 

• S. Snodgrass and J. White assigned to Facilities Committee.  



 Farmington Community Library Board of Trustees 
 Board Meeting - 6:00 p.m. - July 11, 2024 

 

 

New Meeting Room Policy 

No motion 

NEW BUSINESS (Continued) 

New Volunteer Policy 

MOTION by White to approve new Volunteer Policy was supported by Muthukuda. 

Vote: Aye:  All in favor (6-0) 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

R.A. Seaton, praises library staff, diverse collection, choice of materials highlighted for holidays, 

and variety of programs. Library and staff have supported homeschooling.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 

 

TRUSTEE COMMENT 

K. Brown - what is latest on Farmington approving new board member? E. McClellan will notify 

when City of Farmington announces board member approval on agenda.  

D. Muthukuda - what is process for reviewing policy? K. Siegrist would like to look at every 

policy every two years.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Board meeting was adjourned by President McClellan at 7:39. The next meeting of the 

Library Board is scheduled for Thursday, September 12, at 6:00 pm. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Jim White, Secretary 

Library Board of Truste 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Meeting Minutes 

Farmington/Farmington Hills  

Commission on Children Youth and Families 

June 6, 2024 

Nature Center, Heritage Park 

24915 Farmington Rd, Farmington Hills, MI 48336 

 

 

 

1. Call to order 

a. Meeting called to order at 6:04 pm 

b. Members present: Adam Whitfield, Sharon Snodgrass, Alisa Valeden, Tammy Luty, 

Tanya Nordhause, Bria Barker-Lewis, Rod Wallace 

c. Members absent: Brian Spitsbergen, Colleen Coogan, Bhumika Mistry, Ashley Gabb, 

Marie Sarnacki, Jordan Scrimger 

d. Others present: Marla Parker, Doug Edwards, Matt Gill, Kimberly Luty, Jenny Willard, 

Jenny Vanderholen 

2. Approval of Agenda 

a. Sharon read the agenda as there was not a printed copy available for everyone 

b. Sharon moved, Rod seconded 

c. Motion passes unanimously 

3. Approval of May 2 Minutes 

a. Alisa moved to approve Minutes. Sharon seconded.  

b. Motion passes unanimously 

4. Reflection Activity 

a. Conducted throughout the meeting. Writing prompt: “What I appreciate about you this 

year is…” 

5. Youth Division Update 

a. Matt gave the update 

i. Close to the end of the year 

ii. Many new activities added this year 

1. Nature center field trip 

iii. Open house in August 

iv. 5 staff members have committed to coming back next year - very happy about 

this.  

1. Staff has bonded over the course of the year.  

6. Issues Committee Update 

a. Kindness Rock Garden 

i. Tammy gave the update 

ii. Rock painting at the farmer’s market didn’t have a huge turnout. Weather wasn’t 

great. .  

b. Mental Wellness Fair 

i. Rod gave the update 

1. One vender no showed 

2. Decent traffic throughout the day.  

3. Vendors have been asking if the next event is being planned.  



 

 

c. Tammy mentioned we may combine the rock painting and mental wellness fair events 

next year 

d. Volunteer recognition event 

i. Marla and Matt gave the update 

1. Some changes have been advised as city council meetings are going 

very long  

2. There will be a small reception in the community room ahead of the city 

council meeting and then awards given at the meeting 

3. There was a discussion about the administration of the event and how 

much time there will be to give time 

e. Commission budget 

i. There is an estimated surplus of $1,000 that has not been spent 

ii. There was an open discussion about other ideas to spend the money 

1. Tammy suggested buying a large chess set for one of the city parks. Cost 

is estimated at $500 

2. Library of Things is also a possibility for the library. Physical items (i.e. 

microscopes or telescopes) that people can check out for use.  

3. Jenny gave some commentary about items that would be useful for the 

Library of Things 

4. Marla said she doesn’t like the idea of spending money for the library 

since the library already gets money from the city and the chess set might 

not be a great idea since the items could be stolen or used for other 

unintended purposes. She likes the idea of having a more direct impact 

on the youth and families in the city.  

iii. Vote to allocate the rest of the budget to buying specific items and marketing 

materials that support the Career Fair, Mental Wellness Fair, and Kindness Rock 

Garden initiatives 

1. Alisa moved. Rod seconded 

2. Vote passed unanimously 

f. Survey of the community 

i. Rod gave the update 

ii. Goal to survey the community’s concerns to help us set the agenda for the 2024-

2025 commission 

7. New Business 

a. Alisa 

i. New restaurant downtown. Blueberry Brunch 

b. Sharon 

i. Updated list of commission members is coming with a list of city employees that 

help the commission 

c. Doug  

i. Cipriano Classic walk/run is coming up. Participants and volunteers needed.  

d. Marla:  

i. Volunteer recognition on Monday. All commission members welcome to attend 

e. Rod 

i. Juneteenth coming up. Major celebration at Catalpa Oaks in Southfield  

f. Bria 

i. Kids had daycare prom last week 



 

 

g. Tanya 

i. Daughter turning 13! 

h. Jenny 

i. Summer reading has started 

ii. Very busy summer coming for the Library 

i. Kimberly 

i. Last day of school tomorrow 

j. Tammy 

i. College tours this summer 

8. Public Comments 

a. None 

9. Adjournment 

a. Moved by Rod. Seconded by Sharon  

b. Motion approved unanimously 

c. Meeting adjourned at 7:15 pm 



 

1 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
FARMINGTON / FARMINGTON HILLS EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS COMMISSION 

July 1, 2024 
FARMINGTON HILLS CITY HALL – COMMUNITY ROOM 

31555 W. 11 MILE RD. 
FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48336 

 
CALLED TO ORDER BY: CHAIR WECKER AT 5:00PM 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: SWEENEY, IGWE, SIEGRIST, WECKER, AVIE, CIARAMITARO, 
THOMAS, HOPFE, SLOAN 
 
MEMEBRS ABSENT: FORSHEE, WILLIAMS, SCHERTEL, ECHOLS 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Friess (FPS), Piggot (FHPD), Pankow (FHFD), Yuskawatz (YMCA), 

Aldred (FH City Council) 
 
CITIZENS PRESENT: Brian Tyler 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   

Motion by Avie, support by Siegrist, to approve the agenda as submitted.  
Motion carried unanimously.   

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 Motion by Avie, support by Thomas, to approve June 3, 2024 meeting minutes as 

submitted.   
 Motion carried unanimously.     
 
BUDGET ITEMS: 

• Purchase order for Stop the Bleed training supplies and CPR mannequins submitted for 2023 
budget year ending June 2023.  

• Farmington Hills City Council approved budget for 2024.  
• Discussion and consensus that the 2023 Stop the Bleed kits were charged to the proper 

accounts. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: (none) 

•  EPC polo shirts - have arrived and are being distributed.  Shirts are to be worn at the 
Founder’s Festival by those attending.   

• Founder’s Festival - The EPC booth will be located in Riley park across from Starbucks.  
Booth staffing was discussed. The literature packets were assembled by a local cub scout 
troop and 100 packets are ready for distribution.  Chair Wecker will bring half of the packets 
to the booth for Thursday and Friday.  He can bring more if necessary.  QR code sheets will 



 

2 
 

be available.  Chair Wecker will write a letter of appreciation to the cub scouts that 
assembled the packets.   

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
• The Farmington Hills City Public Information Office is open to an EPC landing page on the 

City website.  Many city boards and commissions already have this access.  The details for 
the EPC page are to be determined between the communications sub-committee and 
Farmington Hills.   

 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS: (none) 
 
LIAISON REPORTS: 
 
• FPD (Friess) – The Farmington Founder’s Parade daily contacts are Sargent Ren and 

Sergeant Weir.  The parade organizational contact is Julie.  The Farmington Neighborhood 
watch meetings are moving to a quarterly format.  The next meeting will be on September 
12, 2024 in the Farmington City Council Chambers with Commander Anderson.  

• YMCA (Yuskawatz) – The YMCA board is open to having a Narcan box installed on their 
facility.  The Farmington Area YMCA is currently hosting their kids summer camp.  
Expressed appreciation for being recognized at the Farmington Commission on youth and 
family at their meeting on June 10, 2024 awards presentation.   

• FHPD (Piggott) – The Public Information Office is open to an EPC landing page on the city 
website but it must be handled discretely.  Last week a Farmington Hills citizen was 
disposing expired prescriptions at the FHPD drop box and took a few boxes of Narcan from 
the newly installed box.  The citizen attended a concert in Oceana County, Michigan.  He 
found a fellow concert attendee who had passed out from a drug overdose and he utilized the 
Narcan and saved a life.     

• Aldred (FH City Council) – The revised EPC by-laws were approved by City Council.  The 
2024 EPC budget was also approved.  He noted his appreciation for the EPC Tip of the 
Month presentations.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Brian Tyler expressed his interested in joining the EPC.  He was 
encouraged to send a letter of interest to the Farmington Hills City manager for inclusion on 
the city’s list of people in consideration for the commission.   

 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS:    

• Sweeney – recognized the FHPD for their recent MCOLES award for being the first State of 
Michigan public safety agency to train 100% of their police officers, cadets, and dispatchers 
on managing mental health crisis response.   



 

3 
 

• Avie – asked that the Founders parade organizational volunteers stay after the EPC meeting.  
Commented on a recent article about updating personal 72 hour “go” bags.   

• Siegrist – passed along a thank you from one of his neighbors for the FHPD’s professional 
handling of a public disturbance in his neighborhood. 

• Hopfe – expressed thanks at being recognized at the Farmington Commission on Youth and 
Family at their June 10th awards presentation.   

• Ciaramitaro – commented on the many positive comments for the FHPD popsicle outreach 
at Heritage Park’s splash pad during the last heat wave.   

• Wecker – reminded the EPC commissioners that everyone is eligible to take the CPR / AED 
/ Stop the Bleed class offered by FHFD.  The next class is July 18th, 2024 at Station 4 (28711 
Drake Rd.) at 5:30 pm in the training room.  Discussed installing AED’s at some of the 
public outdoor areas in Farmington Hills.  Corewell has installed AED’s outside some of 
their facilities.  

 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  

It was confirmed that the next meeting date is on Monday, August 5, 2024 in the Community 
Room.  

 
ADJOURNMENT:  
Chair Wecker adjourned the meeting at 6:02 pm.   

Minutes taken by M. Sweeney, drafted by Secretary Echols 



 

FARMINGTON BICENTENNIAL TASK FORCE  

August 27, 2024 
7 PM – Farmington City Hall  

 
Committee members present: Jill Keller, Pam Green, Chris Halas, Sean Murphy, Maria T, Maria 
S-G, Melissa Andrade 
Committee members absent: Agnes Scryzki 
Others present: Carl Johnson 
 
Sean called the meeting to order at 7:10pm. 
 
A/ BICENTENNIAL GALA REVIEW 
An all-around success! Thanks to our partners KickstART Gallery, Farmington/Farmington Hills 
Education Foundation, all the volunteers from each group, and Chris Greig for chairing. It was a 
huge lift. From Bicentennial group, thanks to Maria T and Carl for running publicity and more. 
Committee to send Chris Greig gift basket: $100 – Dolcetto or local. Maria T check w Chris if we 
need to do thank-yous (sponsors, volunteer committee, special guests). 
 
B/ CARES FAMILY DAY/DUCK RACE/BICENTENNIAL MOVIE NIGHT REVIEW 
Duck race: Our people were the ones doing fun things!  
Movie night: Great use of Mansion, attendees wanted to see this become a recurring event. 
100+ attendees. Oakland County Parks was awesome partner. Food trucks awesome – they said 
the defining factor for them coming was City waiving the fees. Both of these were great family 
programming. Pam will send thank-you notes to Cares. 
 
C/ BRANDING/PROMOTIONS/MERCH SALES UPDATES 

1. Merch discussion 
a. New order: 5-6 people on waitlist for XL+ sizes.  
b. Last 2 merch booths: Ladies Night, Holly Days: Old merch, QR for hoodies 
c. Online sales: Underground Printing; setup fee $250, $50/SKU. 
d. Merchant – KickstART? Maria T follow up again w Dwayne 

Committee decided to order the XL+ tees requested, then set up online store for hoodies. Carl 
will create some designs. 

2. A-Frames: Melissa putting out A-frames next week: Starbucks, Fresh Thyme, Riley 
Park, Dearborn Music. 
 

D/ PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 
1. Updates – Bicentennial landing page, etc 

Melissa will post list of past events plus sponsors. Maria T send updated version 
Water bill: Melissa send Maria T deadline for copy/back page (include sponsors) 
 
E/ TIMELINE MURAL PROJECT 

1. Updates on approvals: Instead of going before ZBA, Jeff Bowdell from Building 
Department said to submit building permit and letter from Glen Una. We have run 



into issues getting property owner signoff for electrical work, which may delay the 
permanent installation of overhead string lights. Nevertheless, they must be 
installed in some fashion by Sept 25, as they have been promised for our unveiling 
ceremony with SOCMA mayors/city managers and County Commissioners. Mayor 
LaRussa is showcasing the Bicentennial as part of the event, and this is a major 
component. 

Kate checked with property owners today at 2:30; awaiting report. 
As backup: Chris will call about professional lighting package including Edison lights. Maria T 
and Sean volunteered to do a temporary installation themselves. 
 

2. Unveiling reception: Sept 25, 5:45pm arrival, 6-6:30 ceremony. 
a. Food, drinks, plates, napkins, tables, decorations: Fresh Thyme/6 cases of 

water, Perfect Pairing/charcuterie board, Chocolate Chipped Bakery, Busch’s 
offered but we dropped them due to conflict of interest with Fresh Thyme. 
Pam asking Dolcetto to donate, Sean asking Kitchen Creations. Melissa asking 
Brad about mini donuts (we will pay Brad if needed). Will need to put 
sponsor names on A-frame (give Melissa 1 week) “Food Sponsors” 
Maria T ask Chris/Diane if we can borrow the high tops (6-8) and tablecloths. 
Food tables (2) from farmers market closet. Décor: 2 mums from Fresh 
Thyme, Maria S-G to buy. 
Invites: Warnerettes, wax museum kids, Maria S-G will talk to barbershop 
(5:30-6), Maria T invite Warnerettes and Abe Lincoln. 

b. Promo: Melissa will create flier and version of poster for A-frame. Maria T 
will write text for FB event, Melissa to post. Maria T will do invites, work with 
DDA, write water bill text. 

 
Other notes: 
-Hand out light show fliers at event 
-Melissa to do event permit, get trash cans 
-Maria T and Commissioner William Miller will speak. 
 
Maria T will send our bills over to Oakland County for reimbursement: 
$4,200 panels, $2,000 design, $3,800 our section of lights/bill from DDA 
 
F/ BICENTENNIAL LIGHT SHOW  

1. Sponsor funds status: $14,500 committed. 
2. Ratify budget expenditure to meet gap funding: $5,500. Moved by Maria T, all ayes 
3. Promo: FB event, media release, flyers, DDA email, water bill. Maria T to write copy 

for FB event, water bill, contact DDA with request for media release/promo 
email/FB. Melissa to post FB event. Carl to create filer (send him all logos). Sean to 
write letter to sponsors: asking for logos, sharing run of show. 
NOTE: PUT SPONSORS ON FLIERS/POSTS/PRESS ETC AS OUTLINED BELOW 

a. Sponsors: ensure we’re delivering on our promises: 
i. $5k – Bosch and DTE: Brand appears on all event communications, 

social media posts, and media releases as a “Shining Star” sponsor. 
Intro at event [Joe?], Logo/branding projected on building before and 
after show. Access to venue for display/canopy/table booth 



ii. $2.5k – Dinan: Brand appears on major event communications, and at 
least two social media posts, including media releases. Access to 
event for display/canopy/table booth. Logo displayed at end of show.  

iii. $1.5k – MIND: Brand appears on major event communications, and at 
least two social media posts, including media releases. Logo displayed 
at end of show.  

iv. $500 – Gotcha Covered: Brand appears on major event 
communications, and at least one social media post. Logo displayed 
at the end of the light show. 

4. Farmington Road shutdown update 
Farmington Road needs to be shut down Fri Sept 27, 5-11pm, to facilitate light show. 

Melissa will do permit tomorrow. 
Maria S-G will talk to Heights and Pecora: inform of event and invite participation. 

 
Other light show notes: 
-Use same speaker system as we used for movie 
-Postcard table outside for people to fill out while waiting (not staffed) 
-Sell popcorn from Civic (Melissa to contact Scott) 
-GLP has been very amendable to the event and will ensure lights are off, blinds down, etc. 
 
G/ BUDGET OVERVIEW AND FINAL SPENDING PLAN 
Budget recap: 
FY 2023-24: $28,599 
FY 2024-25: $4,876 
Total spent: $33,475 
Total remaining ($49,000-33,475): $15,525 
Subtract Gabe expenses ($5,500), window papering (up to $1,000): $9,000 left 
 
Budget for remaining $9,000: 
Posters: $200 
T-shirt order (XL+): $200 
Timeline unveiling snacks: $300 
Chris Halas/video music: $200 
Final video/timeline unveiling: $1,500 
Time capsule: $1,000 
Sweatshirt online store setup: $300 
Carl invoices: $350 
Wax museum thank-you gifts: $195 
 
Remaining: $4,755 
Committee agreed that balance of $4,000 (keeping a buffer) can be put toward mural lighting. 
 
H/ OTHER BUSINESS 
Maria T invited all committee members to City Holiday Party (with plus-one for each). 
Suggested we do a wrap-up presentation to City Council at end of year. 
 
Sean adjourned the meeting at 9:23pm. 


	1 9.16.2024 Council Meeting
	4aa 8.19.2024 Special Meeting Minutes FINAL
	4ab8.19.2024 Regular Minutes  FINAL
	4ac 9.3.2024 Special Meeting Minutes - FINAL
	4ad 9.3.2024 Regular Minutes  Meg
	4B August 2024 Public Safety Report
	4C Monthly Payments Report August 2024
	4Da June 2024 Cover Sheet
	4Db June 2024 Quarterly Investment Report
	4E Bicentenial staff report
	4F Coogan resignation CYF
	7A FLOCK FY 24-25
	7Ba 24.09.16 Building Sewer Lining First Reading
	7Bb OCA-Building Sewer Lining_markups
	7Ca 24.09.16 Sewer Repair James Court
	7Cb #102724-08 Freedom  Flemming Sewer Rplcmnt
	7Da Grand River_Pickett Emergency Sanitary Sewer Lining
	7Db Farmington Grand River  Pickett Spot Lining 8.22.2024
	7Dc Farmington Grand River  Pickett CIPP Full 8.19.2024
	7Dd Sanitary Sewer Assistance_Pipeline_Recommendation of Award_9-13-2024
	7Ea Sanitary Sewer Lining August 24
	7Eb 2024-197 Invoice 24-01784
	7Fa 24.09.16 Warner Home Grant Funding Exterior
	7Fb Grant Funding Improvements Part 1
	7Ga DPW Seam Repair
	7Gb Farmington DPW 7-15 Seams
	7Gc City of Farmington DPW
	7H Council Item Social District Amendment
	Staff Report Amend Social District
	Fourth Amended Resolution - Social District September 2024
	STATE OF MICHIGAN COUNTY OF OAKLAND CITY OF FARMINGTON
	RECITATIONS:
	AYES:

	Social District Plan Packet Amended Sept 2024
	Social District Plan


	7Ia Staff Report - Budget Amendment #4
	7Ib Budget Amendment #4 2024-25
	BA-1

	9a Board & Commission Minutes
	9b DDA July 10, 2024 Minutes
	9b e August 14 2024 MINUTES DRAFT
	9c 8824-fcl-board-meeting-minutes-draft
	9d cyf-06-06-2024-approved
	9e epc-07-01-2024-approved
	9f Bicentennial Aug 27 minutes



